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China Fortune Holdings Limited
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Corporate Profile
NAEN

China Fortune Holdings Limited (“China Fortune” or the “Group”),
formerly named Fortune Telecom Holdings Limited, mainly
sells and distributes mobile phones and digital products in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The Group was
established in Hong Kong in 1992. It was first listed on the GEM
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock
code: 8040) on 16 February 2000, and successfully transferred
to the Main Board (Stock code: 110) on 26 January 2004. The
Group has a strong shareholder background and well operational
and professional management team.

In 2007, the Group acquired Zhuhai Reminda Telecom
Equipment Company Limited which was a company selling
mobile phones and telecommunication equipments in the PRC.

In 2009, the Group acquired a Strontium mining site in the PRC,
as its first step in entering the natural resource industry.

The corporate culture of the Group rests on the integration of
the West and the East, modern and traditional management
philosophy, with an aim to build up a “Continuous Learning
Enterprise”. The corporate spirit of China Fortune focuses on
‘Human Enterprise”. Under the leadership of its aspiring and
energetic management, China Fortune’s staff will team up
and move towards the Group’s goal of ranking as one of the
largest and best wireless communication and data products and
services providers in the region.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chairman and Executive Director
Mr. Lau Siu Ying

Executive Directors

Mr. Luo Xi Zhi
Mr. Wang Yu

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor

Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis (resigned on 3 October 2017)
Dr. Law Chun Kwan

Mr. Lam Man Kit (appointed on 3 October 2017)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Fok Wai Ming, Eddie

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor (Committee Chairman)
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis (resigned on 3 October 2017)
Dr. Law Chun Kwan

Mr. Lam Man Kit (appointed on 3 October 2017)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor (Committee Chairman)
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis (resigned on 3 October 2017)
Mr. Lau Siu Ying

Dr. Law Chun Kwan

Mr. Lam Man Kit (appointed on 3 October 2017)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Committee Chairman)

Mr. Wang Yu

Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor

Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis (resigned on 3 October 2017)
Dr. Law Chun Kwan

Mr. Lam Man Kit (appointed on 3 October 2017)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda

HONG KONG HEAD OFFICE

Room 1505-07, Tower A, Regent Centre
63 Wo Yi Hop Road, Kwai Chung
Hong Kong
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China Fortune Holdings Limited
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Corporate Information

NG =¥

CHINA HEAD OFFICE

Room 9008, Yong Xin Building
887 Huai Hai Zhong Road
Huangpu District

Shanghai, PRC

SHANGHAI OFFICE

Room 328, Xin Mao Lou

2 Tai Zhong Nan Lu
Waigaogiao Free Trade Zone
Shanghai, PRC

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Codan Services Limited
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Abacus Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

AUDITOR

BDO Limited

LEGAL ADVISOR
Conyers Dill & Pearman
PRINCIPAL BANKERS
BOC

China Merchants Bank
ICBC (Asia)

COMPANY WEBSITES

www.fortunetele.com
www.chinafortune.com
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Holdings Limited

BREXE
Fortune
Investment

BREE
Fortune
Telecom

BiRES
Fortune
Resources

BE - WERHEAX
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Diversified business
development through
investment,
merger and acquisition

WEEIRENIR - B -
ARREXREE
Exploration, exploitation,

refining and asset investment

of mineral resources
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Retail chain for
telecommunication
equipment
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Corporate Milestones

TXRER

FEB
18

The former trading arm of the
Group - Express Fortune Limited
(“EFL”) was founded by Mr. Lau Siu
Ying and his brothers in Hong
Kong.

WPEEEREABREBRIRE
BRAR ([RE] ) —AEEHF
ZEBHIEE -

JUL

Commenced Fortune
Telecom Group’s franchise
retail business in the PRC.

RPBHREEEEEE L
HERTER -

EFL became one of Nokia’s
earliest authorised
distributors in the PRC.
RENAHBEDHEHEIR
ERERz—

16

FEB

Completed the acquisition
of 51% shareholdings of
Synergy Pacific (Holding)
Limited (“Synergy Pacific”).

ERBBRESS (ER)
BRAR ( [REBH])
2 51%0RHE

Listed on the GEM Board of
the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (Stock code:
8040).

RABIZPARIER L
(B SR : 8040) -

DEC

MAY

Fortune Shanghai was
acknowledged by Shanghai
Waigaogiao Free Trade
Zone Management
Committee as one of the
best enterprises for
commodity sales.

RIE B LBISRAR
RERZS SR REMIE

A US$12 million syndicated
loan was successfully
arranged.

B INZHE—T812,000,0003
TTZEEER -

BEERE -

SE

PT

A HK$160 million
syndicated loan was
successfully arranged.

B3 % HE—T8160,000,0007%5
TLZEEER




MAR

The Group has achieved a record
annual sale of 2.1 million sets of
mobile phones and a record net
profit over HK$60 million.

AREMAI T 442,100,000 BE B
F#23860,000,0008 TLALFIK0A2 85 -

JUN

For a consecutive year, Fortune
Shanghai was again acknowledged
by Shanghai Waigaogiao Free Trade
Zone Management Committee as
one of the best enterprises for
commodity sales.

BEE_F  RELEFEE LB
BRANEERZESEREMEE
BERLEZ— -

JAN

SEPT

A US$16 million syndicated loan
was successfully arranged.
P Ih % HE—1816,000,000% 7T 2 $R[E

Bt

A °

NOV

Fortune Shanghai increased its
share capital from US$6 million to
US$25 million.

RIE /88 K BAN 6,000,000 704
ANZ25,000,000% 7T ©

DEC

Successfully completed the
acquisition of 100% shareholdings
of Synergy Technologies (Asia)
Limited, and the disposal of 46%
shareholdings of Synergy Pacific.

B35k B Synergy Technologies
(Asia) Limited,2 100% %4 & H & K
BEHZAB%HE o

26
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Corporate Milestones
TEERE

FEB

Contracted to acquire 51% stake in
Zhuhai Reminda Telecom Equipment
Company Limited (BEiE 118 &8
H&MHEFR/AF) and completed the
acquisition in October 2007.

AT BRI R IR ER R A R
INDRAPT R s S
FISERE o

SEPT

Formed a joint venture with
TeleChoice International Limited for
the Nokia fulfillment business.

EilTeleChoice International Limitedfi{,
-EEAR - EHEHEENALRE

Name changed to China Fortune
Holdings Limited.

FARTEREZERBBRAF -

DEC

JAN

23

Listed on the Main Board of
the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (Stock code:
110).

REBBRXAERET (K
5% - 110) -

Newly obtained the
nationwide distributorship of
Samsung mobile phones.
FRG=ERHEE L 2H
DIRHE

SEPT

Successfully obtained the
Fulfillment Distributorship
for all Nokia Stores in the
PRC.

RIS TEMAREDRR
BIEZ A G ED$HHE

Completed the
acquisition of 50.8%
interest in Sifa Mining
which has the right to
conduct mining
activities in a Celestite
(Strontium), Zinc and
Lead mining site
situated in the Hubei
Province, the PRC.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

Lau Siu Ying
g/ E

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

TEREFANTE
[
£
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Dear shareholders,
REVIEW

2017 continued to be a year full of difficulties and challenges.
Although there was growth in the mobile phone market, the
competition in the mobile phone retail market was very keen
and the Group’s performance in this area had been affected.
Customer’s focus is expected to gradually shift from the
functionality of mobile phone to the shopping experience and,
in this regard, the large mobile telecommunication chain stores
have advantages.

In order to diversify the business of the Group, we have been
actively looking for opportunities which will further enhance
the shareholders’ value. Since we have been in the related
mobile phone industry for decades, and the potential for mobile
phone related business development is surely enormous and
sustainable, big data, mobile phone operating system and
mobile internet are the major key business areas the Group
interested in.

IR -
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For our mining business, the downturn in demand for minerals
and cyclic fluctuations in the industry have dramatically and
adversely affected our construction plan while we are in the mid-
way in developing a new mining site exploitation system. The
road ahead for our mining business won’t be straight and easy,
but full of obstacles and uncertainties. We will certainly stay the
course and solve all the problems encountered.

OPPORTUNITIES AND CHALLENGES

The world becomes even more and more challenging nowadays,
so as the mobile phone industry in the PRC. The PRC is one
of the strongest countries in terms of economic performance,
and with its huge internal consumption and room for expansion.
Though with keen competition, development potential is still
enormous. The Group will continue to strengthen our existing
relationship with the leading manufacturer to look for further
cooperation opportunities.

Apart from strengthening our current principal business in the
mobile phone and mining business, the Group has entered into
a joint venture agreement to engage in blockchain technology
business during the Reporting Period. The Board are optimistic
about the future prospects of blockchain technology and
its application across the global communities as blockchain
technology is safer, more usable, more efficient and smarter than
traditional technologies. In view of the growing of blockchain
technology market, the Group will put more emphasis on the
implementation of blockchain technology business and its
potential uses across various industries and customers using
such powerful innovation.

We will continue to actively seek and grasp market opportunities
and increase the depth and breadth of our sources of revenue
in order to generate satisfactory returns for shareholders on a
continuous basis.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERES

APPRECIATION

Finally, | wish to sincerely thank our employees and business
partners for their continued dedication and commitment to
the Group, and | would like to express my appreciation to
our financial institutions, shareholders and investors for their
continuing supports and trust towards the Group.

Lau Siu Ying
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Financial Review

Our turnover in mobile phone business decreased in the year.
Moreover, there were impairment loss recognised in respect of
prepayments paid to suppliers, leading to an increased loss of
HK$24.9 million incurred in this business segment, as compared
to a segment loss of HK$5.1 million in last year. Owing to the
re-assessment on the valuation of mining right, an impairment
loss on mining right of HK$174.6 million and an impairment
loss on related plant and equipment of HK$9.0 million were
recognised in the year, with details set out in note 17 on pages
132 to 134 of this report. By offsetting with a HK$41.1 million
deferred tax credit associated with this mining right impairment,
the net effect of this impairment to the financial result in this year
was approximately HK$142.5 million. In aggregate, the Group
incurred a loss of HK$186.7 million in this year, as compared to
a loss of HK$86.3 million in last year.

The Group recorded a decrease in the consolidated revenue
from HK$110.6 million in last year to HK$7.4 million in this year.
The gross profit amounted to HK$0.3 million, a decrease when
compared to the last year of HK$1.8 million. The gross margin
percentage during the year was 3.9% which was higher than the
last year of 1.7% due to the higher gross margin achieved in the
mobile phone trading business in this year. Other income was
HK$1.0 million in this year when compared to HK$1.2 million
last year, which was maintained at a similar level. The other
gains and losses in the year consisted of an impairment loss
recognised in respect of available-for-sale investments amounted
to HK$2.6 million, an impairment loss recognised in respect
of plant and equipment amounting to HK$9.0 million and an
impairment loss recognised in respect of prepayments paid to
suppliers amounted to HK$24.9 million.

The selling and distribution costs amounted to HK$0.4 million
which decreased as compared to HK$2.6 million of last year.
It was mainly because the staff costs and rental expenses
decreased during this year. The administrative expenses
amounted to HK$14.7 million when compared to the last year of
HK$15.2 million, which was maintained at a similar level.
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As far as the mobile phone retail chain and wholesale business
in Zhuhai was concerned, the revenue achieved during the
year amounted to HK$0.7 million as compared with last year
of HK$4.3 million. Owing to the fierce competitive business
environment this retail chain facing, the Group continued to
share a loss from it during the year. As the performance of
the associates was unpromising so far since these associates
were invested by the Group, the Group shared net losses of
approximately HK$6 thousand from the results of the associates
during the year as compared to the net loss of HK$0.9 million in
last year.

The finance costs was HK$1.2 million this year when compared
to HK$1.3 million last year, which was maintained at a similar
level.

The net asset value of the Group attributable to owners of the
Company as at 31 December 2017 amounted to HK$31.4
million or HK$0.03 per share when compared to HK$106.7
million or HK$0.13 per share as at 31 December 2016. The
basic loss per share was 12.25 Hong Kong cents as compared
to the basic loss per share of 5.99 Hong Kong cents in last year.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s aggregate other
borrowings amounted to HK$14.9 million when compared to
HK$13.8 million as at 31 December 2016, which was maintained
at a similar level.

The total cash and cash equivalents amounted to HK$18.4
million as at 31 December 2017 without any deposit pledged
to banks. The Group is financed by a combination of its equity
capital, cash flow generated from its operation and other
borrowings. During the year, there was no material change in the
funding and treasury policy of the Group. The Group considers
there is no material potential currency exposure as the majority
of its revenue and expenses are derived and incurred all in
Renminbi in the PRC. It is the treasury policy of the Group to
manage its foreign currency exposure whenever its financial
impact is material to the Group.

FER B EEATEEHRMBEEBIE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The inventories of the Group as at 31 December 2017 amounted
to HK$2.1 million, when compared to HK$1.2 million as at 31
December 2016. The inventory turnover period was 69 days in
this year when compared to 5 days of last year. The Group will
continue to apply strict policy in inventory control in the future.

The amount of trade and other receivables as at 31 December
2017 was HK$12.6 million, when compared to HK$40.3 million
as at 31 December 2016. The decrease was mainly due to the
impairment loss of HK$24.9 million for the year.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had in total 15 employees
as compared to 38 employees as at 31 December 2016.
Employees were remunerated according to the nature of their
job duties and market trend. The Group provided staff welfare
and fund contribution to its employees in accordance with the
prevailing regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong. There was no
material change in the remuneration policy, bonus scheme and
share option scheme during the year. The Group has a share
option scheme under which the Company may grant share
options to the participants, including directors and employees,
to subscribe for shares of the Company.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Market Overview

According to the statistics released by the Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology of the People’s Republic of China
(“MII”), there were more than 1.4 billion subscribers to mobile
phone services in the PRC as at the end of 2017. While there are
continuing intense competitions among the major mobile phone
manufacturers in the PRC, they are trying to cut the distribution
layers by directly supplying to the provincial distributors and
leading retailers with a view to increase their profitability.
Because of this, leading vendors have developed multi-channel
distribution models which include “national distribution”,

“provincial distribution”, “direct to retail” and “direct to operator”.
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REERZZE—tF+ZA=+T—RH2ZHEE
© % /52,100,0008 T MR 2T —"F+=A4
=+—HA151,200,0008 T - AFEZFER
HEHA69K - i EFEFEAIRSK - AREERBEK
BEBHRBRSTEESRE-

R-ZE—+FE+_A=Z+—RH BREFEREX
T2 E b JE U BR 51 & 88 &12,600,00078 7T+ M R
ZE—XF+=ZA=+1+—HA/A40,300,000
B -BERBRLDNEEARAFEZRERSE
24,900,00078 JLFT 8 °

R-ZZE—+FE+_A=Z+—HB AEEHER
15%EE MR -_T—"F+=ZA=+—HEAI
BEBHEEB -EEFHERES CBEAMERT
HEEME - AEERBETFEALRESZHRITR
BlREEREEIR/AMRERESEHR -FA-
B *EZIqui\J&ﬁ%Hx%?rilJIﬁéﬁ“
FoAREBESIFTHERETE Bt AR

M2EE (REEERES) KL AR ﬁﬁzli

B 17 2 AR #E -

&iE M
TEHE

BEBEFEAREMBIEMNEEI ([T
MESEBDBEM2GFAEE RF—1F
- FEZE %%EE%@H}E}\%&E%M&A

BEESRFTEMNE  FERSEABHEFRRERNE
AEBBEERRERD fﬁﬁﬁiﬁg%ﬁfﬁm
R0 85 B 2 - LAIBSR B AIBE N o Btk - KRR
ﬁaéJﬁ%xLﬂfﬁ*ﬁT BRIZEDHE]
[ERoH] [EETE] RIEELER] -

13



14

Fortune ||u|(]||l Limited

China
‘:Fi‘:? IR R D A

nagement Discussion and Analysis

Ma
EEER WD

On the other hand, mobile carriers are key participants in
the mobile phone industry chain. The restructuring of mobile
carriers in 2009 and the issuance of 3G and 4G licenses
have led to more intense competition among the mobile
carriers. By cooperating with retailers, especially large
mobile telecommunication chain stores, the mobile carriers
can benefit from the retailers’ in-depth understanding of
customer behaviors and spending preferences. Through such
cooperation, the customers will experience more professional,
convenient and integrated customer services. Thus, large mobile
telecommunications chain stores are expected to become the
main sales channel for the mobile carriers for their bundled
mobile phones.

Business Review
Mobile Phone Business

The Group was involved in the business of trading, wholesale
and retail of mobile phones and telecom equipments in China.
Although there was growth in the mobile phone market, the
competition in the mobile phone retail market was very keen and
the Group’s performance in this area had been affected.

Customers focus is expected to gradually shift from the
functionality of mobile phone to the shopping experience.
Customers will normally require services such as function
presentations, digital phone books synchronization and pre-
installing software, etc, in purchasing a mobile phone. In the
3G & 4G era, the convergence of mobile telecommunications
and the Internet also led to rapid development of value-added
business which requires the retail channels to advance from
a pure sales platform to an integrated service platform. In this
regard, the large mobile telecommunication chain stores have
advantages.
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Mining

We commenced developing a new mining site exploitation
system in our Strontium mining site since 2010. After the
expiration of a 5-year mining operating permit on 25 September
2012, Sifa Mining obtained a renewed mining operating permit
for 2 years (the “2-year Permit 2012-2014”) from the Ministry
of Land and Resources of the PRC ( % A R £ FNE B £ &R
#6) (“MLR”"), under which Sifa Mining was allowed to carry out
exploration activities only, but not exploitation activities. The
2-year Permit 2012-2014 was expired on 25 September 2014.

On 27 April 2015, a mining operating permit was granted by
MLR for a term of 2 years from 25 September 2014 to 25
September 2016 under which a restriction was added that no
exploitation activities were allowed but only exploration activities.
Such restriction imposed on the renewed mining permit was
basically the same as the previous mining permit which was
approved by MLR in 2012 whilst the application for mining
exploitation permit is a continuing process.

The Board has come to the attention that the Department of
Land and Resources of Hubei Province of the People’s Republic
of China (the “DLR”) issued an announcement (the “DLR
Announcement”) published on 29 December 2017 in respect
of the deadline of application for renewal of the expired mining
operating permit. In the DLR Announcement, the DLR instructed
the owners of the expired mining operating permits to furnish the
application procedures for the renewal before 28 February 2018.
If the owners fail to do so, they are responsible to de-register the
mining operating permits before 31 March 2018 by themselves
or the DLR will de-register the permits instead. The Group
was not be able to furnish the application before the deadline
and therefore, instructed the lawyer to clarify with the DLR the
Group’s situation on whether the Group is allowed to submit a
new application for the mining operating permit in future. Up to
the date of this report, the Group has not yet received the reply
from the DLR.
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The Directors are of the opinion that there is material
uncertainty on whether the Group will be able to make a new
application for the mining operating permit because of the
DLR Announcement. Also, high capital investment is to be
involved for the new application and the reversal of the industry
downturn is still unpredictable. The Directors have factored
these into their assessment of the recoverable amount of the
Group’s mining right and related plant and equipment, and the
carrying amount of the related deferred tax liabilities as at 31
December 2017, and provided a full impairment of the mining
right of HK$174,589,000 and related plant and equipment of
HK$8,965,000 and derecognised all the related deferred tax
liabilities of HK$41,116,000 in the profit or loss during the year.

Prospects and Outlook

The continued economic growth in the PRC is fuelled by a high
internal consumption. As the world’s biggest handset market,
there were more than 1.4 billion handset subscribers in the
PRC with an increase of around 95.6 million subscribers in
2017. There were around 1 billion 4G users among the total
subscribers, and forecasted to increase much further in the
near future. On the other hand, there were more than 1.1 billion
mobile Internet users which implies that there are huge business
opportunities in both mobile application and mobile commerce.
Since the Group has been in the related mobile phone industry
for decades, big data, mobile phone operating system and
mobile internet would be surely the key business areas that the
Group is interested in. Blockchain technology is another area
that the Group is pursuing. The Group is actively looking for
further opportunities which will further enhance the shareholders’
value.
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Executive Directors

Mr. LAU Siu Ying, aged 54, is the founder, Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 1992. Mr. Lau
has extensive working experiences in the telecommunications
industry for over 25 years and has established solid business
contacts in both Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Lau is responsible
for directing the Group’s overall business policy and strategies
as well as overseeing the Group’s business development in
Hong Kong and the PRC. Prior to setting up his business, Mr.
Lau worked for Hutchison Whampao Group for approximately
5 years, in charge of the business development of the
telecommunications in the PRC. Mr. Lau holds a bachelor
degree in Business Administration from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong master degree of science in Information Technology
from the National University of Ireland, Dublin.

Mr. Lau is currently the trustee in New Asia College of the
Chinese University of Hong Kong and the Board Councilor of
China Mobile Communications Association. In the aspects of
social and economic activities, Mr. Lau is devoted to promoting
economic and educational development. He served as the vice
president of the Hong Kong Association of Jieyang, the honorary
president of Shanghai Chaoshan Chamber of Commerce,
Hong Kong and Macau Director of the Dongguan City Youth
Federation and the vice president of Hong Kong Island Chaoren
Association Limited.

Mr. LUO Xi Zhi, aged 60, joined the Group in October 1995
and was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in
September 2002. Mr. Luo holds a certificate in Accounting from
the Finance Academy of Jiangxi Province. Mr. Luo has over 20
years of financial and accounting experience in the PRC. Prior to
joining the Group in 1995, Mr. Luo was the chief accountant for
Zhaoqing Sz Di Telecom Co., Ltd.
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Mr. WANG Yu, aged 52, joined the Group in April 2006 and was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in November
2009. Mr. Wang is the General Manager of a subsidiary of the
Company and in-charge of the mining business segment of the
Company. Mr. Wang graduated from Xi’an Jiaotong University
with a master degree and a bachelor degree in Computer
Science. Mr. Wang has more than 10 years working experiences
in channel and distribution management on computer products
and mobile phones with local and multinational companies in
the PRC. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang was a General
Manager of a listed company in the PRC focusing on IT
business.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHANG Wing Seng, Victor, aged 80, last held the position
of Managing Director of APCG Business Pte. Limited. Prior
to this, Mr. Chang was the Managing Director of Singapore
Technologies Telecommunications (Beijing) Pte. Ltd. based
in Beijing for 2 years. Mr. Chang had held various senior
management positions over 25 years with the Singapore
Technologies Group, mainly as the Director of Finance. Mr.
Chang was a graduate in Accounting from the Royal Melbourne
Institute of Technology, Melbourne, Australia and the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in Australia. Mr. Chang had also
completed the Program for Management Development at the
Harvard University Graduate School of Business Administration.
Mr. Chang was a certified public accountant in both Singapore
and Australia. Mr. Chang was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in October 1999.

Dr. LAW Chun Kwan, aged 52, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in June
2012. Dr. Law has extensive working experience in various
business fields including advertising, telecommunications,
information technology and real estate development in both
Hong Kong and the PRC. Dr. Law is presently engaged in
real estate development business in the PRC. Dr. Law holds a
bachelor degree of social science from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong, a master degree of e-business and a doctorate
degree of business administration in information systems from
the Edith Cowan University, Western Australia.
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Mr. LAM Man Kit, aged 42, is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lam
graduated with a bachelor degree of Business Administration
from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lam has worked in an
international audit firm and various public and private companies
in Hong Kong, with over 18 years of financial, accounting and
auditing experiences and has worked in the finance department
of the Company from 2007 to 2013, with his last position as
company secretary and financial controller of the Company. Mr.
Lam was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company in October 2017.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. FOK Wai Ming, Eddie, aged 50, was appointed as the
Company Secretary of the Company in January 2014. Mr. Fok
is also the Financial Controller of the Group and the authorised
representative of the Company. He graduated from the University
of Hong Kong with a bachelor degree of Science in Engineering
and the University of Wolverhampton with a bachelor degree in
laws and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Fok has years
of financial and audit experiences in Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance with a view to assuring the integrity,
transparency and quality of disclosure to protect the interests
of all shareholders. The Company’s corporate governance
practices are based on the principles and code provisions
(“Code Provisions”) set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company has
complied with most of the Code Provisions of the CG Code,
except for the deviations as stated in paragraph headed
“Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” and “Re-election of
Directors”.

The Board will continuously review and improve the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company to ensure
the business activities and decision making processes are
regulated in a proper and prudent manner.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for securities
transactions by Directors of the Company during the year under
review.

Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, each of whom
has confirmed that he has complied with the required standard
as set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31 December
2017. The Model Code also applies to other specified senior
management of the Group.
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Overall accountability

Members of the Board are individually and collectively
accountable to the shareholders for the success and sustainable
development of the Company. The Board provides direction
and approval in relation to matters concerning the Company’s
business strategies, policies and plans whilst the day-to-
day business operations are delegated to the executive
management. The Board is accountable to the shareholders
and in discharging its corporate accountability, every Director of
the Company is required to pursue excellence in the interests
of the shareholders and fulfill his fiduciary duties by applying
the required level of skills, care and diligence to a standard in
accordance with the statutory requirements.

Board composition

The Board currently comprises three Executive Directors and
three Independent Non-executive Directors of whom all are
independent as defined under the Listing Rules. Independent
Non-executive Directors constitute more than one-third of the
Board. The Company has received from each Independent Non-
executive Director an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and considers that all Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent. To the best knowledge
of the Company, there is no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship among the members of the Board.
Brief biographical particulars of the Directors are set out on
pages 17 to 19.

Re-election of directors

All Non-executive Directors of the Company are not appointed
for a specific term as stipulated under the provision A.4.1 of the
CG Code but are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-laws. In accordance with the relevant
provisions in the Bye-laws of the Company, if the appointment of
Directors is made by the Board, the Directors so appointed must
stand for election by the shareholders at the first annual general
meeting following their appointments and all Directors, except
the Chairman, must stand for re-election by the shareholders by
rotation. Separate resolutions are proposed for the election of
each director.
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Nomination of directors

The Nomination Committee is authorised by the Board to
determine the policy for the nomination of Directors, to set out
the nomination procedures and the process and criteria adopted
to select and recommend candidates for directorship.

Board responsibilities and delegation

The Board collectively determines the overall strategies of the
Company, monitors performance and the related risks and
controls in pursuit of the strategic objectives of the Company.
Day-to-day management of the Company is delegated to the
Executive Directors or the officer in charge of each division
and function who is required to report back to the Board.
Functions reserved to the Board and those delegated to
management are reviewed periodically. All Board members have
separate and independent access to the senior management,
and are provided with full and timely information about the
conduct of the business and development of the Company,
including monthly reports and recommendations on significant
matters. Should separate independent professional advice be
considered necessary by the Directors or any Board Committee,
independent professional services would be made available to
the Directors or such Board Committee upon request. The Board
has delegated some of its functions to the Board Committees,
details of which are set out below. Matters specifically reserved
for the Board include approval of financial statements, dividend
policy, significant changes in accounting policies, material
contracts, significant appointments such as Company Secretary
and external auditor, terms of reference of Board Committees, as
well as major corporate policies.

To implement the strategies and plans approved by the Board,
Executive Directors and senior management meet on a regular
basis to review the performance of the Group and make
financial and operational decisions. The Company has arranged
appropriate insurance cover on directors and officers liability for
its directors and officers.

Details of the responsibilities, membership, attendance and
activities during the year of each Board Committee are set out
on pages 25 to 30.
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Board meetings and attendance

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Company and to discuss future strategy.
Five Board meetings were held in 2017. At the Board meetings,
the Board reviewed significant matters including the Company’s
annual and interim financial statements, proposals for final and
interim dividends (if any), annual report and interim report. At
least 14 days’ notice is given to all Directors for all regular Board
meetings and all Directors are given the opportunity to include
matters for discussion in the agenda. All minutes of the Board
meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are available
to all Directors for inspection. During the year, the Chairman of
the Company has held a meeting with all the Independent Non-
executive Directors without other Executive Directors presented.

The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings in
2017 is set out below:
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Number of

Meetings

HE/

Directors Eo] FEINE

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Chairman) Bl NELE (/) 5/5

Mr. Luo Xi Zhi BEZRE 5/5

Mr. Wang Yu EEREE 5/5
Independent Non-executive Directors BUKHITES

Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor B 5K 5 o A 5/5

Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis EHRYEAE 4/5

(resigned on 3 October 2017) (ER=ZF—+F+A=ZHEE)
Dr. Law Chun Kwan ERIRIE LT 5/5
Mr. Lam Man Kit* R e 0/0

(appointed on 3 October 2017)

*

No Board meeting was held after Mr. Lam Man Kit was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director on 3 October 2017.
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Chairman and chief executive officer

Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual but Mr. Lau Siu
Ying currently assumes both roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.

Provision A.4 of the CG Code states that all directors should be
subject to re-election at regular intervals. However, Mr. Lau Siu
Ying, being the Chairman of the Board, does not need to retire
by rotation.

Mr. Lau Siu Ying has been in charge of the overall management
of the Company since its incorporation. As a result, although he
does not need to retire by rotation and assumes both roles of
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
the Board considers that such arrangement at the Group's
current stage of development can facilitate the execution of the
Group’s business strategies and maximise the effectiveness of
its operations. Nevertheless, through the supervision from the
Board including the Independent Non-executive Directors, the
interests of the shareholders should be adequately and fairly
considered.

Directors’ continuing professional development

Each newly appointed director is provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as
well as his responsibilities under the relevant statutes, laws, rules
and regulations.

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the year,
Directors are provided with monthly updates on the Company’s
performance, position and prospects to enable the Board
as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.
In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The Company updates Directors on
the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist in the
execution of the Board’'s responsibilities. Sufficient resources
are provided to enable the Board Committees to undertake their
specific roles. The respective role, responsibilities and activities
of each Board Committee are set out below:

Remuneration committee

The principal role of the Remuneration Committee is to
determine and review the remuneration packages of individual
executive directors and senior management, including salaries,
bonuses, share options and other plans. The Remuneration
Committee reviews and approves the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives and considers salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group, so as to align
management incentives with shareholders’ interests.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors and an Executive Director.
The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Chang
Wing Seng, Victor, an Independent Non-executive Director. The
Company Secretary of the Company serves as the secretary
of the committee. Minutes for the meetings are sent to the
committee members within a reasonable time after the meetings.
The full terms of reference are available on the Company’s
website and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s
website.

D
TREARESE

EEZETE

EXEECRU=ZAZES AEEEARASE
BzREal YHHTEESET - EFZ
SRR ENERETERERE -BE
EZ8ezHBEAG BEELEDHINT:

=

\

HHWESE

FHEZEe T ZAGRETE LENERRT
EENRREBABZFINEE BEFS
AL BN EMGE - FHE B2 RES
SZEEABERBENENLERLEEAB ZH
M TEBAELBRARXNZHE RN
ZREREE ARAEEEMEPIZRAE
S A BB R E IR E R R R A

PNEZBREREH R BUIFNTESER %
HTEFEAR -FTHMEB ST ERBILIFNT
BEERKBEE - RARAZRARAMELEEZE
EME -BHRAIERCHENERRZIAER
MABRETZEEKE - TEZHBESKE TR
ARBWURBEABERSMERABWIUEE
o

25



26

a Fortune Holdings Limited

Chin
PRREZERER QA

Corporate Governance Report
TEERHRESE

The composition of the Remuneration Committee during the year
as well as the meeting attendance of the committee members
are as follows:

FHZEenFAZEAKREEZESXEHRE
RIBERWT

Membership and Attendance RERHFERER
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
HES
Members 8 EEPR
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHITES
Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor (Chairman) Bk sk (F) 1/1
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis EHRYEAE 1/1
(resigned on 3 October 2017) (BER=-F—+F+AZHEE)
Dr. Law Chun Kwan ERIRIE LT 1/1
Mr. Lam Man Kit* PRI e 0/0
(appointed on 3 October 2017) (R=ZF—+F+H=HEZF)
Executive Director BITESE
Mr. Lau Siu Ying B NE A& 1/1

*

No Remuneration Committee meeting was held after Mr. Lam Man
Kit was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on 3
October 2017.

A meeting was held in the year in which the Remuneration
Committee reviewed the remuneration policies and approved
the salaries and bonuses of the Executive Directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee has communicated
with the Chairman of the Company about proposals relating to
the remuneration packages of other Executive Directors and
senior management.

Details of directors’ emoluments and retirement benefits are
disclosed on page 128. Remuneration payable to members of
senior management is disclosed on page 152. Share options
granted under the Company’s share option plan are disclosed
on pages 145 to 147.
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Audit committee

The Audit Committee reviews financial information of the Group,
monitors the effectiveness of the external audit and oversees
the appointment, remuneration and terms of engagement of
the Company’s external auditor, as well as their independence.
The Audit Committee is also responsible for reviewing the
financial reporting process and the system of internal controls
and risk management. The Board also delegated corporate
governance functions to the Audit Committee, including the
review and monitoring of (a) the development and review of the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
recommendations; (b) the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management; (c) the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; (d) the code of conduct of the
Company; and (e) the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and its compliance with the CG Code and
disclosures in the Corporate Governance Report. The full terms
of reference setting out the committee’s authority and its role
and responsibilities are available on the Company’s website and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s website.

The Audit Committee currently consists of three Independent
Non-executive Directors, with one of whom having the relevant
professional qualifications and expertise. The Chairman of
the Audit Committee is Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor, an
Independent Non-executive Director. The Company Secretary
acts as secretary of the Audit Committee. Sufficient resources
are made available to the Audit Committee when independent
legal or professional advice is required.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year. The external
auditors of the Company are invited to the meetings, take part
in the discussions and answer questions from the committee
members. By invitation of the Audit Committee, other Directors
and senior executives may also attend the meetings.
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The Audit Committee held three meetings in the year. The
Company Secretary prepared full minutes of the audit committee

ERZEERFARNGRET=
ERAEZZECER

REF - RAME
TEGHLE R

meetings with details of discussions and decisions reached. The AR RERN AT FHRLEERRER
draft and final versions of minutes were sent to all committee ERS 2R A ERBERNEEAT2BEZES
members within a reasonable time after each meeting. K8 o
The composition of the Audit Committee during the year as well ERZEeRNFACHANERSZEENELE
as the meeting attendance of the committee members are as GHR2BERAWT
follows:
Membership and Attendance REREHERER
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
HE

Members

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis

(resigned on 3 October 2017)
Dr. Law Chun Kwan
Mr. Lam Man Kit

(appointed on 3 October 2017)

BAFHTES

BoxsRE (£/E)

\BRUMEE
(ER-—F—tF+H=ZHFT)

BRI L

MBS &
(RZF—tFTA=ZHEZE)

EEPN

3/3

2/2

3/3
1/1
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During the year, the Audit Committee has discussed with the
external auditor their independence and the nature and scope of
the audit; reviewed the interim and annual financial statements
of the Group, particularly judgmental areas, before submission
to the Board; reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group, findings and management’s response;
reviewed the Group’s adherence to the code provisions in the
CG Code. The Audit Committee recommended the Board to
adopt the interim and annual financial statements for 2017. The
Audit Committee has also performed the aforesaid corporate
governance duties as delegated to it by the Board.

Nomination committee

The Nomination Committee is authorised by the Board to
determine the policy for the nomination of Directors, to set
out the nomination procedures and the process and criteria
adopted to select and recommend candidates for directorship.
The Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, and assessing the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises five members,
a majority of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors
and is chaired by the Chairman of the Board. The Company
Secretary of the Company serves as secretary of the
Nomination Committee. Minutes for the meetings are sent to
the Nomination Committee members within a reasonable time
after the meetings. The full terms of reference are available on
the Company’s website and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited’s website.
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The composition of the Nomination Committee during the year REZEENFACHENERSZEENELE
as well as the meeting attendance of the committee members EERIBERET
are as follows:
Membership and Attendance REREHERER
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
HES
Members 8 EEPR
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Chairman) BINESE (FE) 1/1
Mr. Wang Yu TFREAE 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHITES
Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor 1§ v 1/1
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis =R A& 1/1
(resigned on 3 October 2017) (ER=ZF—+F+A=HEF)
Dr. Law Chun Kwan R ImE T 1/1
Mr. Lam Man Kit* PRI 5 A 0/0
(appointed on 3 October 2017) (RZF—+F+A=ZHEZF)

* No Nomination Committee meeting was held after Mr. Lam Man
Kit was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on 3
October 2017.

A meeting was held in the year, in which members of the
Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted a board diversity policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. With a view
to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. In designing the
Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from
a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged the responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements which give a true and fair view of the
affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries. The auditors are
responsible to form an independent opinion, based on their
audits, on the Group’s financial statements and express their
opinions.

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect to the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 are
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 59 to 65.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

BDO Limited was re-appointed as the Company’s external
auditors by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on
2 June 2017, until the conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting. They are primarily responsible for providing audit
services in connection with the financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2017. During the year, the
fees charged to the accounts of the Group for BDO Limited’s
statutory audit services amounted to HK$850,000. In addition,
HK$40,000 was charged for non-audit service, which was for
interim review service.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year, Mr. Fok Wai Ming, Eddie, the Group Financial
Controller and Company Secretary of the Company, undertook
over 15 hours of professional training to update his skills and
knowledge in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of internal
controls of the Company and for reviewing its effectiveness.
The Board is committed to implementing an effective and
sound internal controls system to safeguard the interest of
shareholders and the Group’s assets. The Board has delegated
to the management the implementation of the system of
internal controls and to the Audit Committee the review of all
relevant financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management function within an established framework.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company is committed to high standard of business ethics
and integrity. A code of conduct is enforced on all employees
of the Group. The employees at all levels are expected to act in
an honest, diligent and responsible manner. No personal gifts or
other forms of advantages from any person or organization doing
business with the Group can be accepted by any employee.
Business partners and customers are reminded from time to
time that our policy forbids any employee or agent of the Group
from accepting any gift from them.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers effective communication with
shareholders is essential to enable them to have a clear
assessment of the Group’s performance as well as
accountability of the board of directors. Major means of
communication with shareholders of the Company are as
follows:

Information disclosure on company website

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information
about the Group to all interested parties as widely and timely
as possible. The Company maintains a company website at
www.fortunetele.com where important information about the
Group’s activities and corporate matters such as annual reports
and interim reports to shareholders, announcements, business
development and operations, corporate governance practices
and other information is available for review by shareholders and
other stakeholders. When announcements are made through the
website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the same
information will be made available on the Company’s website.
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General meetings with shareholders

BRAE

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a useful ARARIZBRRBFRSRE-—FEERTE &
platform for direct communication between the Board and EFeHRREARBER - IMRERSLERE
shareholders. Separate resolutions are proposed on each BEARYB LB I 2 FBEREEBEILRER -

substantially separate issue at the general meetings.

The 2017 annual general meeting (2017 AGM”) was held on 2 TE—tEtFRERBEFAE([ZT—LFRRE
June 2017. The attendance record of the Directors at the 2017 HAFERE | ) DER_ZE—tFAAZHERT-&

AGM is set out below:

EHE_ZF-EERRAFAG ZLEHI W

T
Attendance/
Number of
general meetings
)
Directors o] N/
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Chairman) BINELEE (FE) 1/1
Mr. Luo Xi Zhi BB ZEE 1/1
Mr. Wang Yu FREE 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BYHHTES
Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor 85K B o A& 1/1
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis ERAEb 11
(resigned on 3 October 2017) (ER=ZF—+F+HA=HFF)
Dr. Law Chun Kwan Z R imiE + 11
Mr. Lam Man Kit* RIS A 0/0
(appointed on 3 October 2017) (R=ZF—+F+HA=HEZE)
y No general meeting was held after Mr. Lam Man Kit was appointed H PMXBEEERTE—+FE+A=-RAEZEA
as an Independent Non-executive Director on 3 October 2017. BUIERITESE BMERITRERS -
The Company’s external auditor also attended the 2017 AGM. AARZHINERBMITELEE T —+EFRE

BEFEKRKE-
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Investor relations

The Company recognises its responsibility to explain its
activities to those with a legitimate interest and to respond to
their questions. Questions received from the general public and
individual shareholders are answered promptly. In all cases, great
care is taken to ensure that no price-sensitive information is
disclosed selectively.

Shareholders’ rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders
of the Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the
mandatory disclosure requirement under Paragraph O of the CG
Code:

Convening of a special general meeting on requisition by
shareholders

Pursuant to clause 58 of the Company’s bye-laws, a special
general meeting may be convened by the Board upon requisition
by any shareholder holding not less than one-tenth of the
issued share capital of the Company and the securities being
held carrying the right of voting at any general meetings of the
Company. The shareholder shall make a written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company at the
head office address of the Company, specifying the shareholding
information of the shareholder, his/her contact details and the
proposal regarding any specified transaction/business and its
supporting documents.

The Board shall arrange to hold such general meeting within two
(2) months after the receipt of such written requisition. Pursuant
to clause 59 of the Company’s bye-laws, the Company shall
serve requisite notice of the general meeting, including the time,
place of meeting and particulars of resolutions to be considered
at the meeting and the general nature of the business.

If within twenty one (21) days of the receipt of such written
requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene such special
general meeting, the shareholder shall do so pursuant to the
provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (the “Act”).
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at general

meetings by shareholders

Shareholders are requested to follow the Act for including

a resolution at an annual general meeting of the Company

(*AGM”). The requirements and procedures are set out below:

(0

(i

(ii)

Pursuant to section 79 of the Act, shareholder(s) holding
() not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights
of all shareholders having the right to vote at the general
meeting; or (ii) not less than 100 shareholders, can submit a
written request stating the resolution intended to be moved
at the AGM or a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at a particular
general meeting.

The written request/statements must be signed by the
shareholder(s) concerned and deposited at the Company’s
registered office and/or principal office in Hong Kong, for
the attention of the Company Secretary, not less than six
weeks before the AGM in the case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution and not less than one week before the
general meeting in the case of any other requisition.

Pursuant to section 80 of the Act, if the written request is
in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board (i) to
include the resolution in the agenda for the AGM; or (i) to
circulate the statement for the general meeting, provided
that the shareholder(s) concerned have deposited a sum
of money reasonably determined by the Board sufficient
to meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of
the resolution and/or circulating the statement submitted
by the shareholder(s) concerned in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all the registered shareholders. On
the contrary, if the requisition is invalid or the shareholder(s)
concerned have failed to deposit sufficient money to
meet the Company’s expenses for the said purposes, the
shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this outcome
and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be
included in the agenda for the AGM or the statement will
not be circulated for the general meeting.
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If a shareholder, who is duly qualified to attend and vote at
the general meeting convened to deal with appointment/
election of director(s), wishes to propose a person (other
than the shareholder himself/herself) for election as a
director at that meeting, he/she can deposit a written
notice at the Company’s registered office and/or its
principal office in Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Company Secretary, not less than seven (7) clear days but
not more than fourteen (14) clear days before the date of
the general meeting. In order for the Company to inform
all Shareholders of that proposal, the written notice must
state the full name of the person proposed for election
as a director, his/her biographical details as required by
rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed by the
shareholder concerned and that person indicating his/her
willingness to be elected.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns

to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose

contact details are as follows:

The Company Secretary

China Fortune Holdings Limited

Room 1505-07, Tower A, Regent Centre, 63 Wo Yi Hop Road,
Kwai Chung, Hong Kong

Email: info@chinafortune.com

Tel No.: +852 2422 0811

Fax No.: +852 2428 0988

The Company Secretary shall forward the shareholders’

enquiries and concerns to the Board and/or relevant board

committees of the Company, where appropriate, to answer the

shareholders’ questions.

A\ e g S
TRELARESE

vy MRE (EHEHEEREREREERES
ZR/EBREERAZRERASEEIRE L
RE)BERZAE LRAAT (ZBRER
ABRIN) 2EBEERA MATRRREAEH
HAa LR ENEEBREAZR+T14)
MEA MAQRRAZFMBREER XE
BETERBEXAIEZEBA TR
ZEWR-AEARRNCTEEREEHEE
FoLAEEmBANENRR2EEER
MUz ANTzz2%  ETHRIZE13.512)6H
EZBEEFEREREREALT 225N
WAHEBRRERZBALES -

MESEBEERREAZEF

BRABEHEAER S ABELAWE WES

EREEARREBR AAMEZBKFR
LIS
HRER

ME S E635 B &+ HAE1505-07=
FRERERERERAA

NEMWE

& H : info@chinafortune.com
BRI - +852 2422 0811
{EESRTS - +852 2428 0988

EEENBRAT ARAMEERBRZEMAR
EREXESFER SARRMEBEZESEEE
T UBMERRZEM -



a Fortune Holdings Limited

Chin
FERERIERERA A

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R HERERBRE

This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) report is
prepared with reference to the Appendix 27 — Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting
Guide”) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The information
disclosed in this report is derived from the result of internal
statistics and analysis of the Group’s internal management
systems.

This report presents our sustainability performance for the
period from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017 (the
“reporting period”). Since there were minimal activities in the
mining business, this report only covers China Fortune Holdings
Limited, Fortune (Shanghai) International Trading Co., Ltd and
Zhuhai Reminda Telecom Equipment Company Limited.

The Group is committed to fulfilling its environmental and social
obligations while striving for economic growth and creating value
for the Company’s shareholders. We focus on strategic priorities
in terms of maintaining a peaceful natural environment, creating
a harmonized working environment and sustaining an ethical
business environment. Through this ESG report, we hope to
continually refine our corporate strategy for sustainable business
growth, and deliver long-term value for our stakeholders.

We value your feedback on this report. If you have any feedback
or suggestions, please contact us at info@chinafortune.com.
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THE ENVIRONMENTAL

Our strategy towards the environment is to minimize the
impact on the environment with sustainable operations.
We place strong emphasis on environmental protection
by maximizing the efficiency of resources and reducing
pollution. Our sustainable practices encourage employees
to be more considerate of the environment by savings on
energy consumption and use of materials so that impact on
the environment and natural resources can be minimized.

A1. Emissions

Given the nature of our businesses, we do not
contribute directly to greenhouse gas emission,
discharges into water and land nor the generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste. However,
we do share the common public interest of creating
sustainable operations.

Our emissions mainly come from indirect energy
consumption in terms of electricity. Therefore,
management of energy conservation is reinforced
in our offices through the ventilation system with a
stabilized room temperature at 25 degrees Celsius, as
well as reminding employees to turn off any computers,
printers, light and other office equipment that are
not being used. We try to use daylight wherever
possible, and choose energy efficient equipment during
procurement. We encourage our employees to travel
by public transport to reduce carbon footprint. We
advocate a green lifestyle by growing plants in the
office. Awareness of environmental protection among
our staff was raised through the promotion of green
office culture.

Relevant important laws and regulations including
the “Energy Conservation Law” and “Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China” are
strictly complied with.

R HERERBRE
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A2. Use of Resources A2. BEREH

Energy saving tips and guidelines are in place as a BMIZBE L ERIERRIES - AR
direction on the efficient use of resources throughout AEEERBEEERFERER &M
daily operations. Our strategy is to reduce resources B 3R S A3 3% iR BR S L (E AR BR IR Sk
used in daily office operation, through wise use of B RBRBERE URESRBRSE
energy and water, wastage and paper consumption, BECBEYER RLOTARERERE
as well as promoting the practice of recycle, reuse, EmRL>BERAEBIEMERNE
reduce, and replace. We recognize the importance TR RPIRFI R T I & E AT R
of transitioning our operations to bring upon more BRI EEENEE -

sustainable options.

Use of Resources

ERER
Fuel Efficiency We are committed to replacing old vehicles with more fuel-efficient vehicles.
We encourage employees to use telephone conference whenever possible to reduce
the carbon footprint of business travel.
PR R BMBNBEREERRE AR UGN TE-
BMZBEERAIMTEATEREESH WAL ERNBE -
Materials We encourage to use automatic pencil leads and ball pen refills.
We encourage employees to bring their own water bottles instead of using paper
cups.
We promote wise use of toilet paper.
We advocate the use of double sided printed to reduce paper wastage.
El BMEEEAESHECRERRFEER -
B ENE B B H K AR AR o
HAIHEBN AR L AR 4% -
LM EEEmITEAR D REHK
Water We make sure there is no leakage of taps to conserve water.

X B PIRER K BEBA L IR K A B A A 7K
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RIR HERERBRE

ERER
Energy We maintain the room temperature at 25 degree Celsius to converse energy.
We keep the air ventilation system off if the room is vacant.
We encourage employees to save energy by turning off lights and electronics when
not in use.
We remind employees to turn off lights, computers, printers and other office
equipment after work.
We keep track on the power consumption record and take measures when there is
significant increase in consumption.
BER BMBEEREZTEABIN25E AR
BMREHEARBEERR RS-
BMEREEEH AR R NEARFEEEERE
BMREREN T RBEEY B TR REMBAETRE-
BMERE NEFARLE K IR E R E G hN e ERERE i
Resources We encourage employees to reuse plastic bags, recycle glass bottles and aluminium
cans.
Recycling of printer cartridges and toners is implemented.
BIR B EE B ERB K - O WK & inEe -
BPEEROUITEIREG MIRH S -
The Environment and Natural Resources A3 BERAREZER
Since our core operations are confined to the office ARBEMANZLEERRRIEAZTIR
environment, we do not make significant impact on B BT EEIRIBERRANERE
the environment and natural resources. Still, adhering RERFZ - AT RIBERMABR
to our policy, we will review in due course to seek for BPIBREE RIRETRE  AER

continual improvement, if any. BoE (WmE) -
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B EREA

&

B. SOCIAL

B1. Employment

We believe that our employees are valuable assets to
the company. In order to build a harmonized working
environment, we recognize the importance of fostering
a supportive workplace for employees to grow with the
company together.

We firmly believe in the principle of equal opportunity
for all employees and this is addressed in the staff
handbook as our employment policy. We ensure that
our recruitment, promotion, compensation, training
and dismissal practices are on a fair and equal basis.
We do not tolerate any discrimination based on race,
religion, sex, marital status, age, national origin, or
other considerations deemed inappropriate by local
laws. We strictly comply with relevant local laws and
regulations relating to hiring, compensation, dismissal,
working hours, rest periods and diversity.

We respect and protect the legal rights of employees
by abiding to the local laws and regulations including
“Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China” and
“Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China”,
Kong.

as well as “Employment Ordinance” in Hong

B2. Health and Safety

Safety always comes first throughout the operation
and is the basis of success. Our health and safety
approach is to minimize occupational hazards and
provide a safe working environment. We have set up
procedures for our employees to follow in case of
typhoons and severe rainstorms to ensure their safety
during the journey from and to work. Access to and
egress from workplace is maintained unblocked. First
aid box with emergency contact is in place. We did not
find any work fatality cases during the reporting period.
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Apart from physical health, we also take care of the
mental health of our employees as well. Paid annual
leaves higher than the statutory requirement are offered
to enhance the work-life balance. In addition, we have
lunch gathering during special festivals such as the
winter solstice and the Christmas Eve. We arrange
birthday parties for our employees to maintain their
spirit in a pleasant working environment.

In order to comply with the “Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance” and “Regulation on Work-Related Injury
Insurances”, all employees are covered by insurance
against any accidents.

Development and Training

The Group encourages continuous learning within
our employees and puts emphasis on their holistic
development. All new joiners are required to undergo
an induction briefing regarding corporate culture,
company’s policy and procedure, health and safety,
basic knowledge about the Group’s operation and
system. Measures on professional training, enhancing
leadership and talent team building are available
for employees to achieve their personal goals while
growing with the Group.

A performance appraisal is in place to review the
employees’ performance annually. This provides an
opportunity between the company and the employees
to communicate so that we can meet employees’
expectations and objectives.

B3.
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B4. Labour Standards

Child and forced labour are strictly prohibited in the
workplace. Stringent hiring procedures and processes
are enforced to verify the legal proof of age before
commencement of work. We do not adopt any kind
of forced labour including prison labour as supplier.
During the reporting period, we did not find any issues
with child and forced labour.

B5. Supply Chain Management

One of our procurement principles towards
sustainability is to ensure that our procurement system
can manage any environmental and social risks in
the supply chain. In order to maintain sustainability
as well as quality, our strategy is to build a long-term
relationship with suppliers. We continue to monitor the
existing suppliers’ performances to ensure their quality
and performance is up to our standard. New suppliers
have to undergo assessment and evaluation before
being adopted.

Green procurement has been our procurement
approach. In the process of sourcing materials, we
require that components used by the suppliers be
in full compliance with environmental protection
requirements, in accordance with national and industry
standards.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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B6. Product/service Responsibility

Product and service

Quality is the key component to take shape of
customer satisfaction. With regard to product
quality, we ensure that all products should comply
with national standards including China Compulsory
Certification (CCC) in terms of testing certificates
issued by accredited laboratory. We pledge to provide
our customers with the following:

1) 7 days with 24 hours online customer service — to
ensure customers enquiries could be responded
promptly no matter during pre-sale, selling or
after-sale;

2) Free refund within 7 days — we have signed an
agreement with the online shopping platform to
ensure this guarantee is implemented;

3) 1-year warranty exchange guarantee — as long
as a complete proof of purchase is kept, we are
able to exchange the goods if there is any quality
issue.

We value customers’ feedback, as this is the driving
force for our continual improvement. Once a complaint
is received, we will take prompt actions to investigate
the issue and carry out remedial action plans.

Customer privacy

Customer information is treated as confidential data in
the Group. Only core staff of relevant department are
granted permissions to access according to different
hierarchy and locations. The Group has the right to
executive disciplinary actions on employees who
violate the rules stipulated in the employee handbook.

R HERERBRE

B6. Em REEF
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Intellectual property

The Group endeavours to protect intellectual rights
by different measures. We actively monitor any
infringement in terms of counterfeit goods across
the country with people’s court and public bodies.
In addition, we renew the registration of any expiring
trademarks and patents based on the need of our
business. We strictly abide by relevant laws and
regulations, including the “Copyright Law of the
People’s Republic of China” and “Trademark Law of
the People’s Republic of China”.

Advertising and labelling

Systematic review and approval process is in
place before advertisement launch to the market
to safeguard accurate presentation and protect
customers. Appropriate safety warnings are attached
on the product packaging for consumers’ information.

We are in accordance with relevant laws and
regulations including “Advertising Law of People’s
Republic of China” and “Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights
and Interests”. There are no breaches of laws and
regulations relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters in connection with our
products and services provided during the reporting
period.
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B7. Anti-corruption

BS8.

Anti-corruption is the cornerstone of the business and
sustainability, which at the same time the most material
topics rated by our stakeholders. Stringent policies
are stipulated in the employee handbook in relation to
compliance with the “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance”,
such as soliciting or accepting any advantages in the
business operations, to ensure employees’ actions
abide by our internal regulations. Procedures are
established to minimize corruption risks related to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering in the
business operation. Internal control mechanism is in
place for monitoring. We did not have any concluded
legal cases regarding corrupt practices during the
reporting period.

Community Investment

As a corporate citizen, we are responsible for driving
a positive impact to the community. We create job
opportunities and promote economic growth in
the local communities through our business and
operation. We encourage employees to participate
actively in voluntary services during their leisure time
to help people in need. We are under the process of
formulating a policy on community engagement.
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Directors’ Report

EEGHRES

The directors present their annual report and audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries and principal associates
are set out in notes 39 and 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on page 66 of the annual report.

No interim dividend was declared during the year. The directors
do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note
28 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to shareholders as at 31 December 2017 and
31 December 2016 consisted of contributed surplus and
accumulated profits were nil.
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Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@) it is, or would after payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Chairman)
Mr. Luo Xi Zhi
Mr. Wang Yu

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor

Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis (resigned on 3 October 2017)
Dr. Law Chun Kwan

Mr. Lam Man Kit (appointed on 3 October 2017)

In accordance with bye-law 86(2) and bye-law 87 of the
Company’s bye-laws, Mr. Lam Man Kit and Mr. Chang Wing
Seng, Victor shall retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election,
respectively.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

The term of office of each of the non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors is the date up to his
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s bye-
laws.
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EEGHRES

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the
directors, the chief executive and their associates in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Future Ordinance (“SFO”)), which were required to be notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Name of director Capacity

BEENR 514

Mr. Lau Siu Ying (“Mr. Lau”)
BI/NELEE (TBI5%E]D) 2REEFERE (M)

Beneficial owner

EDBEBA

Held by a discretionary trust (Note)

EERTHARARROREBRRG 2
B

RZE—+F+—A=+—H EF 1THAEHK
LESEHBEARARAG REREEE (EER
BHEREBEED ([FHREEEG]) EXVEL)
2D EREEROTPHEEREZFRBAER
PIEXVEHETRESD BME ARG REBH S
REMBRAR ([BR]) MEaRkAE (8
FEIREREE 7 RIS R0 B &M & ek
RIEHER R RKE) /B ARRRIRIE
FHRBAEGRAESGFE 2ERMEER
RxE: HERBEBEBLTAREZESTENTES
R 52 FAESF A ([Pl ]) ME AR 7] K
RFTH R KRBT -

AR EAEFREE.10E T2 EBR

Percentage of
Number of the issued share

issued ordinary capital of

shares held the Company
e #T hLEAQXFASBT
EERBE RAEBZ L
188,300,013 20.52%
267,996,285 29.20%
456,296,298 49.72%




Note:

These shares are held by Future 2000 Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands which in turn is held by a discretionary trust,
the beneficiaries of which include Mr. Lau, his spouse and his children.

The interest disclosed above represents long positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company or its associated
corporations.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, chief executives
nor their associates had any interests or short positions in
any shares or underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as defined in the SFO at 31 December
2017.
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EEGHRES

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements. The following
table discloses movements in the Company’s share options
during the year:

B E

AR RBIRAE B2 HERR A BRN
520 - FRREALABBES N2

Exercise
Date of grant price
RHBH THEE
HK$
BT
Category | - Directors
BIE-ES
Mr. Lau 12.7.2013 0.255
ks
Mr. Luo Xi Zhi 12.7.2013 0.255
BEZRHE
Mr. Wang Yu 12.7.2013 0.255
ITRELE
Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor 12.7.2013 0.255
KT
Total for directors
EE@
Category Il - Employees
ENE-EE
Employees 12.7.2013 0.255
B8
Category Il - Consultants
ENE-EH
Consultants 12.7.2013 0.255
=1

Total for all categories

FiT A SR 4 5t

Outstanding Exercised Outstanding
at beginning during at end of
of the year the year the year
FPERTE FRTE FEERTHE
8,000,000 - 8,000,000
1,000,000 - 1,000,000
1,000,000 - 1,000,000
1,500,000 - 1,500,000
11,500,000 = 11,500,000
100,000 - 100,000
300,000 = 300,000
11,900,000 - 11,900,000




ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme disclosed above, at no
time during the year was the Company, its holding company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate. None of the directors, their spouses
or children under the age of 18 had any rights to subscribe for
the securities of the Company or had exercised any such rights
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

No connected transactions nor contracts of significance
to which the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the HRANTIRIERES LB S0 E336E 17
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, as at BEZIFERELZMIN R RZE—+F+_A
31 December 2017, the following shareholders had notified the =t+—H AXAFERXRTHEELEANA D
Company of relevant interests in the issued share capital of the TR EE B -

Company.
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company KAGEREEI10ETZ ZER
Percentage of
Number of the issued share
Name of issued ordinary capital of
substantial shareholder Capacity shares held the Company
e #T HERQAAERT
FTERRER ) EEREE BREzED K
Mr. Lau Held by a discretionary trust (Note 1) 188,300,013 20.52%
Elbes 2REEFERAE (M)
Beneficial owner 267,996,285 29.20%
BB A
456,296,298 49.72%
Mr. Lee Wai, Timothy Held by controlled entity (Note 2) 188,300,013 20.52%
FEEL XEHEREs (Mx2)
Notes: B 5 -
1. These shares are held by Future 2000 Limited, a company 1. ZERMTBECEEBEREXBEESMANY ZA A

incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which in turn is held by
a discretionary trust. The beneficiaries of the discretionary trust
include Mr. Lau, his spouse and his children.

2. Under the SFO, Mr. Lee Wai, Timothy is deemed to have interests 2
in the shares of the Company as he is entitled to exercise more
than one-third of the voting power at general meetings of Future
2000 Limited.

Future 2000 Limited$55 * Mz A Fl@R —EZ#E
EAR A R ERERAZIEABEEELE K
B RkEFRZe-

BEBFRBEKRN ARFTELIEBER
Future 2000 LimitedZ BB K& F1TFE=92 —
A ERZERE MR E AR AR ARG EEE

ED



APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive
directors are independent.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2017, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the listed securities of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2017:

(1) The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers and the largest customer represent
approximately 96% and 77%, respectively, of the Group’s
total revenue;

(2) The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers and the largest supplier represent
approximately 99% and 84%, respectively, of the Group’s
total purchase.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of
a director or a shareholder of the Company which to the
knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, had a beneficial interest in any
of the Group’s five largest suppliers and customers.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Save as disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 20 to 37 of this annual report, the Company has complied
throughout the year with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices and the Corporate Governance Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules which were then in force during
the respective periods.

Detailed information on the Company’s corporate governance
practices is also set out in the Corporate Governance Report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by
the Remuneration Committee having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Group has a share option scheme under which the
Company may grant share options to the participants, including
directors and employees, to subscribe for shares of the
Company, details of the scheme is set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the effectiveness
of the internal control and risk management systems of the
Group, which are designed to manage the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and provide reasonable assurance
against material misstatement or loss.
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Business Risk

The Group’s business risks include rapid change in the general
market conditions, downturn pressure on the overall economy of
the PRC and price competition from other market players. The
Board is responsible for the overall management of the business
and review of material business decisions involving material risks
exposures from time to time.

Financial Risk

The Board monitors closely the Group’s currency risk, interest
rate risk, credit risk, and liquidity risk. The Board also reviews
monthly management accounts, capital structure and key
operating data of the Group.

Compliance Risk

The Board monitor and ensure that the Group is in compliance
with the applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Group
engages professionals from time to time to keep abreast of the
latest developments in the regulatory environment, including
legal, financial, environmental and operational developments.
The Group also adopts a strict policy in prohibiting any
unauthorised use or dissemination of confidential or inside
information.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control and risk management systems covering business,
financial and compliance risks of the Group and is satisfied
that such systems are effective and adequate for the current
operations of the Group.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES AND
ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of its
businesses and the communities with which it engages. The
Group pursues this business approach by managing its business
prudently and executing management decisions with due care
and attention. The Group keeps on reviewing environmental
issues in its operations from time to time.

For details, please refer to section headed “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” on pages 38 to 47 of this annual report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2017.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

No material significant events occurred after the reporting
period.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting
of the Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
Lau Siu Ying
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

IBDO

EEE ¢ +852 2218 8288
{HE : +852 28152239

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF
CHINA FORTUNE HOLDINGS LIMITED
FEREZRERAF

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of China Fortune Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 66 to 162,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the
matters described in the “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion”
section of our report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion on these consolidated financial statements. In all other
aspects, in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

The mining activities related assets and liability

The Group’s mining operating permit was expired on 25
September 2016 and up to the date of the Group’s 2016
annual report, 30 March 2017, the Group was preparing for
the application of a mining operating permit. The directors
were of the opinion that the Group would be successful
in the application for the mining operating permit. The
directors had factored this into their assessment of the
recoverable amount of the Group’s mining right and related
plant and equipment of approximately HK$168,516,000
and HK$8,952,000 respectively, and the carrying amount
of the related deferred tax liabilities of approximately
HK$39,686,000, as at 31 December 2016 (“the mining
activities related assets and liability”). The relevant
government authorities had the discretion of approving the
application or not. As there was no sufficient appropriate
audit evidence for us to assess the likelihood and timing
of the Group in obtaining a mining operating permit, we
were not able to satisfy ourselves of the appropriateness
of the assumptions used by the directors in assessing the
recoverable amounts and carrying amounts of the mining
activities related assets and liability as at 31 December
2016, whether any further or reversal of impairment on
the mining activities related assets should be recognised,
and whether any further adjustment to the mining activities
related liability should be made. Accordingly, and taking
into account of other limitation on our scope of work on
prepayments to suppliers, we did not express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016.
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As detailed in Note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements, on 21 December 2017, the Department of
Land and Resources of Hubei Province of the People’s
Republic of China (the “DLR”) issued an announcement
(the “DLR Announcement”) in respect of the deadline of
application for renewal of the expired mining operating
permit. The Group was not able to furnish the application
before the deadline. The Group, through its lawyer,
submitted a letter on 8 February 2018 to the DLR for the
clarification of the Group’s situation on whether the Group
is allowed to extend the renewal application deadline or
submit a new application for the mining operating permit in
the future. Up to the date of this report, the Group has not
yet received the reply from the DLR.

The directors are of the opinion that there is a material
uncertainty on whether the Group will be successful in
the application for the mining operating permit because
of the DLR Announcement. The directors have factored
this into their assessment of the recoverable amount of
the Group’s mining right and related plant and equipment
of approximately HK$174,589,000 and HK$8,965,000
respectively, and the carrying amount of the related deferred
tax liabilities of approximately HK$41,116,000, as at 31
December 2017, and on the assumption that the Group
cannot renew the permit, provided a full impairment of
the mining activities related assets and derecognised
the related deferred tax liabilities with the corresponding
amounts charged to profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2017.
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The DLR has the discretion of accepting the Group’s
delayed submission of application for renewing the mining
operating permit or a new submission of the application
of mining operating permit. And if the Group’s submission
is accepted, the DLR has the discretion of approving the
application. As there is no sufficient appropriate audit
evidence for us to assess the likelihood of and timing when
the Group would be granted the mining operating permit,
we are not able to satisfy ourselves of the appropriateness
of the assumptions used by the directors in assessing the
recoverable amounts and carrying amounts of the mining
activities related assets and liability as at 31 December
2017, whether any impairment loss on the mining activities
related assets should be reversed, and whether any
adjustment made to the deferred tax liabilities should be
reversed.

Any adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liability as described above would have consequential effect
on the Group’s financial position as at 31 December 2017
and of its financial performance for the year then ended, the
elements making up the consolidation cash flow statement
and the related disclosures thereof in the consolidated
financial statements.

Prepayments to suppliers

Our auditor’s report dated 30 March 2017 relating to
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2016 was modified as certain
aspects of our scope of work were limited including we
were unable to obtain the financial information regarding
two suppliers to assess the recoverability of the Group’s
prepayments to them amounted to HK$33,688,000 at
31 December 2016. The prepayments formed part of the
Group’s trade and other receivables and no impairment loss
thereon was recognised for the year ended 31 December
2016. Therefore, we were unable to determine whether
any adjustment to the trade and other receivables as
at 31 December 2016 was necessary and whether any
impairment loss thereon should be recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

HitEREANBREEM EXENESE
PRI AT A 78 P2 52 2 L RR AR &5 Sk SRR FT A 7R
ZHEF o ERERFEERR AE
TERBEARIGRILESHEEBG BRI
BERXDREBRBEHREFN G Ew.
ERREFAIE A BEMERER &
REE Z?Wi%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ%%%f%ﬁﬁﬁé?
RBER - T—+tF+_-_A=+—HZ7A
WEEBRLEAEZRREERE &8
JE 3¢ [ SR B X A5 AR B B B I BB 2 (TR
BEEER - AR ZED &R R A £ EEH A
BEELZEAAER-

WM EXPri B EER BB ZREERF
HERRAE K BEXRER-_FT—tF
TZA=ZT—AZHBRAREREEZ
BEFEZBBERR BREGREERE
RZBOANRGEMBRERANZ AR KE
BERERARTE -

T EERE

EEy ESEEEBEE—_ZT—XF+=A8
S+ BLFEZEAVBHRERZB8A
—E—+F=ZAZ+HZREAHREED
FERBER RAATESI(FGE A
FHEZREG BIEEEAREESE MMM
EEZPBERNAFHER =T - F+=

A=+—Hz EfEMEERZEMNRK
18383,688,0007% 7T 2 AI Yg B 14 78 1+ ;IR
B BEEBEEWEZFRFNEAAEKE

KZz—Bo ARBE_F-—AF+_H
E+*Etﬁfiﬂﬁ%ﬁ:ﬁﬁ%%°
Hit - & EEEELALEBHR

/\ﬁz‘f’ A=+—BZRKE ZEX &
Hih B R REHERFAR URERE
RUREBE_ZT—A"EF+-_A=+—H1t
FERABEMRERERE-



Annual Report 2017

T —tFR

Independent Auditor’s Report

As noted in Note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements, impairment loss of HK$24,903,000 on the
aforesaid prepayments was recognised in profit or loss
for the year ended 31 December 2017. However, due to
the limitation on our work relating to the prepayments as
at 31 December 2016 as stated above, any adjustment
to the carrying amount of the prepayments as at 31
December 2016 would have consequential impact on the
amount of impairment loss recognised for the year ended
31 December 2017. As a result, we are unable to satisfy
ourselves as to whether the amount of impairment loss was
appropriately determined.

Going concern basis adopted in preparation of the
consolidated financial statements

As described in Note 3(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group reported a loss attributable to the
owners of the Company of approximately HK$111,714,000
for the year ended 31 December 2017 and as at 31
December 2017 the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately HK$10,575,000. These conditions indicate
the existence of material uncertainties which may cast
significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

As stated in Note 3(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group is pursuing certain measures to
improve the liquidity and financial position. The validity
of the going concern assumption based on which
the consolidated financial statements are prepared is
dependent on the successful implementation of these
measures, including the successful negotiation with the
lender to postpone the settlement of interest payable of
HK$12,022,000.
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However, the directors is unable to provide us evidence
showing the status of the negotiation and the information
based on which they consider that the lender would be
willing to postpone the settlement. There was no alternative
audit procedures that we can perform to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence for us to assess the likelihood
that the lender would extend the repayment date to
December 2020. Accordingly, we are unable to satisfy
ourselves that whether it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017 on a going concern basis.

Should the Group fail to implement the above mentioned
measures, it might not be able to continue to operate as a
going concern, adjustments would have to be made to write
down the carrying amounts of the Group’s assets to their
net realisable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities
which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets
and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities. The effects of these adjustments have not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certificated Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard of Auditing issued by the HKICPA and to issue
an auditor’s report. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

However, because of the matters described in the “Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion” section of our report, we were not able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for
an audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the
“Code”), and we have fulfill our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Choi Man On

Practising Certificate Number: P02410
29 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEEEBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE =T —+tF+-A=+—HILtFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and losses

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of mining right

Share of results of associates

Loss before income tax
Income tax credit

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income
that may be subsequently
transferred to profit or loss
Exchange differences arising

on translation from functional
currency to presentation
currency

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Loss for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

LOSS PER SHARE
Basic

Diluted

W zm
35 & AR

EH

H A

H iy ah e 5 18
HE R KA
TTHRE M
& B A
FLER IR HERR

DIEBERRZ

BRPrIS B AT R 1R
Frgmiie

FEEE

BB R

Hi 2E WA - TR EER

BRERR
HIEEE &

2 E%m
EHER

FEZEABIA

PG FE IR
ZAN/NETEZ 2SN
FEFE IR 2R

RIEFEEZEAE

ZA/NSIE RSN
FEFE I MR 2

BRER
EAR

%58

St
=
Ea

EEZ

L ONE

Notes

P &

17

11
10

15

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTEx FHET
7,436 110,638
(7,147) (108,801)
289 1,837
1,039 1,235
(38,245) (6,116)
(400) (2,645)
(14,718) (15,242)
(1,208) (1,278)
(174,589) (84,240)
(6) (905)
(227,838) (107,354)
41,116 21,059
(186,722) (86,295)
6,258 (12,247)
(180,464) (98,542)
(111,714) (49,807)
(75,008) (36,488)
(186,722) (86,295)
(105,255) (58,710)
(75,209) (39,832)
(180,464) (98,542)

(12.25) cents Al

(5.99) cents 1lli

N/A T 3E

N/A A i#
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

a AR 2R

At 31 December 2017 R=—ZE—+F+=-A=+—H
2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 7E FET FAET
Non-current Assets kRBEE
Plant and equipment = K 5% 16 42 9,049
Mining right s 17 - 168,516
Investments in associates /N 18 1,145 1,151
Available-for-sale investments AIEHERE 19 2,449 4,903
Club memberships e 20 888 872
4,524 184,491
Current Assets REBEE
Inventories FE 21 2,098 1,197
Trade and other receivables EWE SERF KR
H b e W AR R 22 12,641 40,256
Amount due from an associate FE UL — fE B & N /) 2 508 35(b) 2,382 -
Amount due from a e — I8 A R
non-controlling shareholder — B IETEHE
of a subsidiary f% 3R 2 KA 23 3,616 3,345
Held-for-trading investments BIEEBKRE 24 1,251 1,254
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 25 18,364 16,000
40,352 62,052
Current Liabilities RBasE
Trade and other payables EBAESEFR
Eo b e~ AR AR 26 25,804 37,863
Amount due to a related party I —REEAT 2 FIE 35(c) 165 1,296
Amounts due to non-controlling FERH B AR
shareholders of subsidiaries FEFEHIERR R 2 FRIB 23 3,671 3,252
Tax payables FERTFIE 6,409 6,272
Other borrowings HEMEE 27 14,878 -
50,927 48,683
Net Current (Liabilities)/Assets  Hi& (A&) EEFE (10,575) 13,369
Total Assets less Current HWEEBRRBEE

Liabilities (6,051) 197,860
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mEMERRK

At 31 December 2017 R-Z—+F+-A=+—H

2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 TERT FAT
Capital and Reserves EXREE
Share capital % X 28 91,778 83,206
Reserves 1 (60,369) 23,457
Equity attributable to owners of ZARQATEE AEEER
the Company 31,409 106,663
Non-controlling interests FE5 M A 2 (87,460) 37,749
(6,051) 144,412
Non-current Liabilities kRBEME
Other borrowings HmEE 27 - 13,762
Deferred tax liabilities REHRIBEE 30 - 39,686
- 53,448
(6,051) 197,860
On behalf of the Board RREFS
Mr. Lau Siu Ying Mr. Wang Yu
2 /NE £ FREE
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR

FE EFE



Annual Report 2017

—=—

TF®]

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERERBEX

Attributable to owners of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-T—tF+-A=+—HILFE

NG ZPN;
Share Non-
Share Share Special Translation  Statutory option  Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve funds reserve losses Total interests equity
BRE FHEH
BRE  ROGEE BAHE RERE iTES fE  ZHER ag B BERAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FhEx TEL ThL TER FER T FhEL TEL ThL
(Note i) (Note i) (Note iii (Note iv) (Note v)
(Ws) (M) (&) (&) (K&

At 1 January 2016 RZE-R"§-A-H 83,206 395,962 2,481 71,273 30,132 991 (418,672) 165,373 77,581 242,954

Loss for the year EEER - - - - - - 49807 (49807) (36488  (86.295)

Exchange differences arising on AR ENAEERIER

translation from functional curency MEAZEHZE

to presentation currency - - - (8,903) - - - (8,903) (3,344) (12,247)
Total comprehensive income FEZEBHA

for the year - - - (8,903) - - (9807)  (B8710) (39832  (98,542)

At 31 December 2016 RZE-AE+ZA=1+-A 83,206 395962 2,481 62370 30,132 991 (468479) 106,663 87,749 144412

Loss for the year FEFE - - - - - - (4714 (11,714 (75008)  (186,722)

Exchange differences arising on BNEEEREEZIIEE

tranlation from functional currency  ME4ZEHZE

to presentation currency - - - 6,459 - - - 6,459 (201) 6,258
Total comprehensive income FERELHA

for the year S S = 6,459 5 - (111,714 (105255)  (75209)  (180.464)

Issue of ordinary shares (Note 28) ~ E/T &M% (MizH28) 8,572 21,429 - - - - - 30,001 = 30,001

At 31 December 2017 R-F-+£+-A=1+-8 91,778 417,391 2,481 68,829 30,132 991 (580,198) 31,409 (37,460) (6,051)

Notes: B3 -

()  The share premium represents the amount subscribed for share () B =EERERAeHEBEHEMEIRIE
capital in excess of nominal value.

(i)  The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal (i) HRIFEEEMEEREAR 2 RHEERERR
value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal AR—NMNANFETEBEARREMET
value of the Company’s shares issued for their acquisition at the ZROHEER 2 EZE-
time of the group reorganisation in 1999.

(i) The translation reserve represents gains/losses arising on (iy BMERBERGIEG2EE ABFEEH
retranslating the net assets/liabilities of foreign operations into BE A2 EEMEE 2 WS/ BiE-
presentation currency.

(iv) The statutory funds are required by the relevant laws applicable vy ZEESEEARAEBRTREARKEMN
to the Group’s subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic ([FEDKIZHBRARZEBEGFREZ
of China (the “PRC”) and can be utilised to offset the prior years’ FEE WA AREBEEZETEB AR BESF
losses of the PRC subsidiaries. EZEE-

(v)  The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options (v EBRERESBEDRBERRITEZEREZ

granted which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payment transactions in Note 3
to the consolidated financial statements.

DNFE HBEREGEEMBERRM ISR ARND B
ERNR R H 2T HERE— TR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE =T —+tF+-A=+—HILtFE

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KEEE
Loss before income tax B P15 70 A S 18 (227,838) (107,354)
Adjustments for: P
Interest expenses B 1,207 1,278
Interest income B WA (156) (25)
Fair value loss on held-for-trading BIEEBEREZATFEEE
investments 102 423
Impairment loss recognised HREEER RBEER
in respect of mining right 174,589 84,240
Impairment loss recognised M ER S 2 BN RIE
in respect of prepayments paid ERZBEEE
to suppliers 24,903 -
Impairment loss recognised HIEWE HERT R
in respect of trade and E b B U BR SR R
other receivables REEE 1,627 798
Impairment loss recognised HAHEEERERR
in respect of available-for-sale BB RSB
investments 2,614 6,340
Impairment loss recognised HHmERZEERZ
in respect of plant and BB RSB
equipment 8,965 -
Impairment loss recognised HEMEERAZBEREE
in respect of club memberships - 210
Long outstanding account Wi R MAREZEREMNERER
payables written off - (159)
Reversal of write-back of JE < (20 40 BR R (2] 4% [
rebate payables - 20
Share of results of associates pal (i AN e 4 6 905
Recovery of write down of inventories 17 & #OR B (516) (286)
Depreciation of plant and equipment BEREE2ITE 331 343
Loss on disposal of plant and HEMERRESE
equipment 37 -

Lapse of unlisted warrants FEETRREF LK - (1,568)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-T—tF+-A=+—HILFE

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital
(Increase)/decrease in inventories

Decrease in trade and other receivables

Decrease in held-for-trading investments

(Decrease)/increase in trade and other
payables

NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received
Proceed from disposal of plant and
equipment
Purchase of plant and equipment
Increase in amount due from
an associate

NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED
FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

EELSEBCEERERE

78 (Em),md

JE W 75 B 3R e EL A e U AR 3R
iRy

FIFEBERERMD

JERT & 2 B 30 e Eo Al e A BR K
R4 /800

meE" (A) G
REFH

REREH
B A E
HERE &R EME R

BERE M&RE

B — P 2% SO S

REED (FTA) g
BREF8

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
(14,129) (14,835)
(385) 1,106
1,086 1,673

= 342
(13,267) 15,017
(26,695) 3,303
156 25

6 —

(6) (15)
(2,382) =
(2,226) 10
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+tF+-_A=+—HILtFE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase/(decrease) in amount due to
a non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary
(Repayment to)/advance from
a related party
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares

NET CASH GENERATED FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

BMEEH

e — PRI P /B8 2 ) — &2 SRR I 1

PRz RBEE 0, O )
(B8) /R —EHEALZ
B}

BT BB ATSRIR

MEZHFEREFE

RERREEEWENFR

FAZRERREEEY

=

o 8 7 8

1

FRZBERREEEY

ReERREEBUEHRIN

Re RRTERF

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
419 (132)
(1,131) 1,745
30,001 -
29,289 1,613
368 4,926
16,000 12,852
1,996 (1,778)
18,364 16,000
18,364 16,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E TR AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-T—tF+-A=+—HILFE

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company with limited liability
incorporated in Bermuda under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended). The shares of the Company
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Its parent and ultimate holding
company is Future 2000 Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands. The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to the
annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“RMB”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) for the convenience
of the shareholders, as the Company is listed in Hong
Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Group are distribution and trading
of mobile phones and related accessories, development
of marketing and after-sales service network and mining
and processing of celestite, zinc and lead minerals.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries and principal
associates are set out in Notes 39 and 40, respectively.

—RER

KRB AREBRE-NN—FRQFE
(i) TaREIMR T 2R ER
REl - ARAZBONRBEABMERXFIAE
PRAR ([BERAT]) £ e ARF 2B AT
RBEERERAT AN REBE RS FHMK
37 2 ‘A AlFuture 2000 Limited » AR &2
AMMEREREEEEMB 2 UL TEF R
[RRIER] — 8 NERE-

ARBZYEEEBSARE (ARE]) -
HRARRTINEE LT - RITERR 4
aMBmExegNET ([BT]) 25

AKARBEERRAR - AEEZ B
BRPHEREBEVHEFERBBEMG -
BHSHEREERKAELL URKEA
FERWEANMERNIER - AEX 2
BARIREERE QA2 EB D BIE MM
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China Fortune Holdings Limited

PEREERERAR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E IR AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+tF+-_A=+—HILtFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
January 2017

The Group has adopted the following amendments
to HKFRSs (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) that are relevant to its operations and
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2017.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised
Losses
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 12,
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle  Disclosure of Interest in
Other Entities

Amendments to HKAS 7 — Disclosure Initiative

The amendments introduce an additional disclosure
that will enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities.

The adoption of the amendments has led to the
additional disclosure presented in the notes to cash
flow statement, Note 36.

2. RABAMBREEN (1EEY

BHEEA])
(@) BB AT EEYBHEE

B-R-B-—tF-—FA—HE£X

AREERMATIEEEFMAE
(IBEGFMAE])RMIEELE
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ER G £ BRI
FTRZEFT

BB G ER RAREHREREDE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017 H#ZE—F

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1

January 2017 (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 - Recognition of Deferred
Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments relate to the recognition of deferred
tax assets and clarify some of the necessary
considerations, including how to account for deferred
tax assets related to debt instruments measured of fair
value.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the clarified treatment
is consistent with the manner in which the Group has
previously recognised deferred tax assets.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle - Amendments to HKFRS 12, Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKFRS 12,
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, to clarify that
the disclosure requirements of HKFRS 12, other than
the requirements to disclose summarised financial
information, also apply to an entity’s interests in other
entities classified as held for sale or discontinued
operations in accordance with HKFRS 5, Non-Current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

The adoption of the amendments to HKFRS 12
has no impact on these financial statements as the
amendments affect only disclosure. In addition, there
is no interest in other entities classified as held for sale
or discontinued operations at the end of the reporting
period.

E IR AR M R

—tEE+ZA=+—HILFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E IR AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+tF+-_A=+—HILtFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group’s consolidated financial statements, have
been issued, but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group. The Group’s current
intention is to apply these changes on the date they
become effective.

Annual Improvements to  Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRSs 2014-2016 First-time Adoption of
Cycle Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards'

Annual Improvements to  Amendments to HKAS 28,

HKFRSs 2014-2016 Investments in Associates
Cycle and Joint Ventures!
Amendments to Classification and Measurement
HKFRS 2 of Share-based Payment
Transactions'
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'
Amendments to Prepayment Features with
HKFRS 9 Negative Compensation?
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers!
Amendments to Revenue from Contracts with
HKFRS 15 Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)'
HK(IFRIC) Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration’

HKFRS 16 Leases?
HK(IFRIC) Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?
Amendments to Sales or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture®

2. RABARMBREEN (1EEY
BHwEEQ]) (&)

(b) E ML KEMZHET - AEMEETE

BRI EHEER

ATE B2 #E] /BT EENG
WE LR A R EARE 2 R A MR
KB BRRERPERKAEEIR
BRM - NEERENE A MA HE
RA&SER-

i BAMBREER
“T-RERE F1RZEE
BERBRE BRRREBNG
ERZEREYE  WEEA

“B-FE BAGEAF28 2
“E-REREE BRI RBERAR
BERBHSE RELEIRE
Bz FREYE

BAMBRS ARG AERNRR S
ERFIR BT ZHBRGHE

BB BRE SRIA
e

BB BHRE REBIRBHER
ERFOR 7B ABE?

BEMBEHRE RERFAHKE
£ B E 155

BB BRE RERPANKE
B F15% 2 (BATBREER
B3] F15HK 2 BE)

5 (BRE % NEZ G RBEMRE
RERBZES)
REBEHR

BB BRE e
AEBI 1655

&5 (BBE % FTEFi R 12 M) TR E k2
RERBZESR)
B PR

ERHBHREEN BREFRABELNR
R SEBLECHEE
SR HEFTAS
F28% 2 B3]



Annual Report 2017
—ET—tFHR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E IR AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-T—tF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. HAEZEMBREER ([FEH
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) FEIMEARER||) (&)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are (b) EMEMAE M KEMZFETAENETE

not yet effective (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019

8 The amendments were originally intended to be effective
for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The
effective date has now been deferred/removed. Early
application of the amendments continue to be permitted

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
- Amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently unclear.
They include amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
removing transition provision exemptions relating to
accounting periods that had already passed and were
therefore no longer applicable.

BUBHEEER (&)

tORZIERE-NF-A-HARZEMAGZ
FE AR AR

2 RIF-NAF-A-REZERRZ
FEHBEN

¢ BEEIIRER-ZZE—XRF—A—H
gz BB R AN - EMBEHRE
WIER, B - R PEA RS BT
BT -

TERE-NFEZZE-AFENEEYN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE =T —+tF+-A=+—HILtFE

2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle - Amendments to HKAS 28, Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently unclear.
They include amendments to HKAS 28, Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures, clarifying that a Venture
Capital organisation’s permissible election to measure
its associates or joint ventures at fair value is made
separately for each associate or joint venture.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 - Classification
and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on the
accounting for the effects of vesting and non-vesting
conditions on the measurement of cash-settled share-
based payments; share-based payment transactions
with a net settlement feature for withholding tax
obligations; and a modification to the terms and
conditions of a share-based payment that changes the
classification of the transaction from cash-settled to
equity-settled.

2.

RRAEBMBHREER ([FEY
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-T—tF+-A=+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows (the business model
test) and that have contractual terms that give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding (the
contractual cash flow characteristics test) are generally
measured at amortised cost. Debt instruments that
meet the contractual cash flow characteristics test are
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”) if the objective of the entity’s
business model is both to hold and collect the
contractual cash flows and to sell the financial assets.
Entities may make an irrevocable election at initial
recognition to measure equity instruments that are not
held for trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity
instruments are measured at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”).

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL
replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and
new general hedge accounting requirements to allow
entities to better reflect their risk management activities
in financial statements.
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2,

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities
from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated
at FVTPL, where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of the liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income unless that
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS
39 for derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the expected credit loss model of
HKFRS 9 might result in earlier provision of credit
losses in relation to the Group’s trade receivables
measure at amortised costs. However, management
expect the effect would not be significant.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 - Prepayment Features
with Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial
assets with negative compensation can be measured
at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income if specified conditions are met
— instead of a fair value through profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-T—tF+-A=+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including HKAS
18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and
related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps
approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in
the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

Step 5: Recognise revenue when each
performance obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRSs. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE =T —+tF+-A=+—HILtFE

2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications
on identification of performance obligations; application
of principal versus agent; licenses of intellectual
property; and transition requirements.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in
more disclosures, however, they do not anticipate
that the application of HKFRS 15 will have a material
impact on the timing and amounts of revenue
recognised in the respective reporting periods.

HK(IFRIC) Int 22 - Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

The Interpretation provides guidance on determining
the date of the transaction for determining an
exchange rate to use for transactions that involve
advance consideration paid or received in a foreign
currency and the recognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability. The Interpretation specifies
that the date of the transaction for the purpose
of determining the exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income
(or part thereof) is the date on which the entity initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the payment or receipt of advance
consideration.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-T—tF+-A=+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 16 - Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will
supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and related
interpretation, introduces a single lessee accounting
model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and
liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to
use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation
of the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease
liability, and also classifies cash repayments of the
lease liability into a principal portion and an interest
portion and presents them in the statement of cash
flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease liability
are initially measured on a present value basis. The
measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments
and also includes payments to be made in optional
periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise
an option to extend the lease, or to exercise an option
to terminate the lease. This accounting treatment is
significantly different from the lessee accounting for
leases that are classified as operating leases under the
predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE =T —+tF+-A=+—HILtFE

2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 - Leases (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating lease of HK$1,228,000 as disclosed in Note
31. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease under
HKFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognise a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability
in respect of all the leases unless they qualify for
low value or short-term leases upon the application
of HKFRS 16. In addition, the application of new
requirement may result changes in measurement,
presentation and disclosure as indicated above.

HK(IFRIC) Int 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of HKAS
12, Income Taxes, by providing guidance over how
to reflect the effects of uncertainty in accounting for
income taxes. Under the Interpretation, the entity
shall determine whether to consider each uncertain
tax treatment separately or together based on
which approach better predicts the resolution of
the uncertainty. The entity shall also assume the tax
authority will examine amounts that it has a right
to examine and have full knowledge of all related
information when making those examinations. If the
entity determines it is probable that the tax authority
will accept an uncertain tax treatment, then the entity
should measure current and deferred tax in line with
its tax filings. If the entity determines it is not probable,
then the uncertainty in the determination of tax is
reflected using either the “most likely amount” or the
“expected value” approach, whichever better predicts
the resolution of the uncertainty.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 - Sales or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses
to be recognised when an entity sells or contributes
assets to its associate or joint venture. When the
transaction involves a business the gain or loss is
recognised in full, conversely when the transaction
involves assets that do not constitute a business the
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or

associate.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. In addition, these
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of measurement and going concern

These financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except that certain financial
instruments are measured at fair values, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern

(Continued)

During the year, the Group has incurred a loss
attributable to the owners of the Company of
approximately HK$111,714,000 for the year ended
31 December 2017 and as at 31 December 2017
the Group had net current liabilities of approximately
HK$10,575,000. These conditions indicate the
existance of material uncertainties which may cast
significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors have carefully considered to the current and
anticipated future liquidity of the Group. The directors
have prepared cash flow forecasts for the period up to
June 2019 after taking into account of the measures
below.

In order to strengthen the Group’s capital base and
liquidity in foreseeable future, the directors of the
Company have taken the following measures:

—  Other than the extension of the principal amount
of the other borrowings as stated in Note 27,
the directors are in the process of extending the
corresponding accumulated interest payable of
HK$12,022,000 to December 2020

—  The directors have adopted a prudent approach in
reducing the Group’s operating and administrative
expenses

Based on the Group’s cash flow forecasts, the
directors are of the opinion that the Group will be able
to meet its financial obligations as they fall due for
the foreseeable future. The Group therefore continues
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing
consolidated financial statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern

(c)

(Continued)

Notwithstanding the above, uncertainties exist as
to whether the Group will be able to successfully
implement the measures as mentioned above that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and therefore, the Group
may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business.

Significant accounting policies
Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”). Inter-company transactions
and balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the dates
of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE =T —+tF+-A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

(c) Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continueq)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured
at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains
or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group
may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to
measure the non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiaries
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which
case the costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration
are recognised against goodwill only to the extent
that they arise from new information obtained within
the measurement period (a maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FEEHE(£Z)

(c) Significant accounting policies (Continuead) (c) FEEFEE (#&)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continueq)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount
of those interests at initial recognition plus such non-
controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes in
equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed to
such non-controlling interests even if this results in
those non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from the investee, and the ability to
use its power to affect those variable returns. Control
is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances
indicate that there may be a change in any of these
elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

(c) Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted for the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in the
associates’ net assets except that losses in excess
of the Group’s interest in the associate are not
recognised unless there is an obligation to make good
those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor’s share in the associate’s profits and
losses resulting from these transactions is eliminated
against the carrying value of the associate. Where
unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of
the asset transferred they are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value
of the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and
included in the carrying amount of the associate.
Where there is objective evidence that the investment
in an associate has been impaired, the carrying
amount of the investment is tested for impairment in
the same way as other non-financial assets.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are carried at cost less
impairment losses, if any. The results of associates
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable during the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

(c) Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when
goods are delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are
provided.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the
principal outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of plant and equipment includes its purchase
price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items
of plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual
values, using the straight-line method. The principal
annual rates used for the current year are as follows:

Leasehold 5% — 20% or over the term of
improvements the relevant leases,
whichever is shorter
Furniture, fixtures and 20% — 33%
equipment
Motor vehicles 20% - 25%
An item of plant and equipment is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if its carrying
amount is higher than the asset’s estimated
recoverable amount.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FEETHE(£Z)

(c) Significant accounting policies (Continued) (c) FEEFEFE (&)

Plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in the profit or loss in the period in which the
item is recognised.

Construction in progress represents plant and
equipment under construction or pending installation
and is stated at cost less any impairment losses. No
provision for depreciation is made on construction in
progress until such time as the relevant assets are
completed and ready for intended use. Construction
in progress is classified to the appropriate category of
plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

Intangible asset
Club memberships

Club memberships with indefinite life are carried at
cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment
losses.

Mining right

Mining right is stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Mining right is amortised using the units of production
method based on the proven and probable mineral
reserves.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FEETHE(£Z)

(c) Significant accounting policies (Continued) (c) FEEFEFE (&)

Intangible asset (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill

At the end of reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have reduced. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any. In addition, intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives are tested for impairment annually, and whenever
there is an indication that they may be impaired. If
the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount to the
extent that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised as income immediately.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

(c) Significant accounting policies (Continueq)

Provision for close down and restoration costs

Close down and restoration costs are provided in the
accounting period when the obligation arising from
the related disturbance occurs, whether this occurs
during mine development or during the production
phase, based on the net present value of estimated
future costs. The cost is capitalised where it gives rise
to future benefits, whether the rehabilitation activity
is expected to occur over the life of the operation
or at the time of close down. The capitalised cost
is amortised over the life of the operation and the
increase in the net present value of the provision is
included in borrowing costs. Where there is a change
in the expected decommissioning and restoration
costs, an adjustment is recorded against the carrying
value of the provision and related assets, and the effect
is then recognised in the profit or loss on a prospective
basis over the remaining life of the operation. Provision
for close down and restoration costs do not include
any additional obligations which are expected to
arise from future disturbance. The cost estimates are
reviewed and revised at the end of each reporting
period to reflect changes in conditions.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

3. XEEFEE(#F)

(c) FTEEFHFE(FE)

HAREERARE

B REERAREHTESIEZE
FELEZGTHIE  REFARREKER
ZEREREREE MTwmZELRE
BEXRBEREDHRAELEERRE
o BRI R] AR SR 2 By R
REA MAWEREHEASHEL
EHIR AR REMBBAREL - EXML
ARG LR B BEFREZ
ARG A B ERA - IFEEHE A R
EEMANLIREE RIBENEREE
EREERELHAE BRMELY
LN RERE E HIR AT EER
BEAER -BEEARERRARED
BREARTEEMHERSSE 2EM
BINBE-KAGEAREE2HRHEE
HEMRELE  URBERE -

FE&

TFENTREATER  RERRKA
KA FE 2 EEEER KA
EREBERA HEFELEEEA
ENMBRBEMES 2BHBRAARNREM
PR o (R TSI SE ASEHVERT B o A &
RRERLEREBBIET ZAFEE
R TERK A E K HE TR Z A RT AR
BB ZEE-

HE

AR A5 SR S BB R 2 B KR o L B
REHwERETABRA  ZHENSDHE
RBEHEN -FAEMBELN —F08
REBERL -



Annual Report 2017

T —tFR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-T—tF+-A=+—HILFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FEEHEF(£Z)

(c) Significant accounting policies (Continueq)

(c) FTEEFHFE(FE)

Leasing (Continuea)
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable
as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of reporting
period, and their income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity (the translation
reserve).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

(c) Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in the translation reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
require a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as port of
the cost of those assets. Income earned on temporary
investments of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on those assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as revenue
in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and consequently are effectively recognised in profit or
loss over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FEETHE(£Z)

(c) Significant accounting policies (Continued) (c) FEEFEFE (&)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
and other PRC state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are charged as expenses when employees
have rendered services entitling them to the
contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured
at the tax rates appropriate to the expected manner
in which the carrying amount of the asset or liability
is realised or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

(c) Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and joint ventures, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they related to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or
when they relate to items recognised directly in equity
in which case the taxes are also recognised directly in
equity.

Financial instruments

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which
the asset was acquired. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value
and all other financial assets are initially measured
at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.
Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
A regular way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale
of a financial asset under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the asset within the time frame
established generally by regulation or convention in the
marketplace concerned.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

These assets represent held for trading financial
assets. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in
the near term.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss in
the period which they arise.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They arise principally
through the provision of goods and services to
customers (trade debtors), and also incorporate other
types of contractual monetary asset. Subsequent
to initial recognition, they are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivatives that are designated
as available-for-sale or not included in other categories
of financial assets. Subsequent to initial recognition,
these assets are carried at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in other comprehensive income,
except for impairment losses and foreign exchange
gains and losses on monetary instruments, which are
recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, they are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses
at the end of other reporting period subsequent to
initial recognition (see accounting policy on impairment
loss on financial assets below).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FEEHEE (&)

(c) Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(c) FEEFHE (&)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of reporting period. Financial
assets are impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

Evidence of impairment could include:

e  significant financial difficulty of the debtor; or

o a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

e granting concession to a debtor because of
debtor’s financial difficulty; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of financial asset
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
When any part of financial asset is determined as
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for the relevant financial asset.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-T—tF+-A=+—HILFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FEEHEE (&)

(c) Significant accounting policies (Continued) (c) FEEFEFE (&)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
For available-for-sale financial assets

Where a decline in the fair value constitutes objective
evidence of impairment, the amount of the loss is
removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss.

Any impairment losses on available-for-sale debt
investments are subsequently reversed in profit or loss
if an increase in the fair value of the investment can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

For available-for-sale equity investment, any increase
in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income.

For available-for-sale equity investment that is carried
at cost, the amount of impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying amount of the
asset and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss is
not reversed.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
initially measured at fair value and financial liabilities at
amortised cost are initially measured at fair value, net
of directly attributable costs incurred.

SRMIA (&)
BB EEREER (&)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

(c) Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if the
following criteria are met: (i) the designation eliminates
or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities
or recognising gains or losses on them on a different
basis; (i) the liabilities are part of a group of financial
liabilities which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with
a documented risk management strategy; or (iii) the
financial liability contains an embedded derivative that
would need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables, amounts due to related parties
and other borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
The related interest expense is recognised in profit or
loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E IR AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+tF+-_A=+—HILtFE
3. FEGTHE (£)

(c) FTEEFHE (&)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-T—tF+-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

(c) Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Fair value measurement

The Company uses Binomial Option Pricing Model to
measure the fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market. Difference may arise
between the fair value at initial recognition (which, in
accordance with HKFRS 13 and HKAS 39, is normally
the transaction price) and the amount determined at
initial recognition using the valuation technique. Any
such differences is deferred and not recognised in
profit or loss. Amounts deferred are recognised in
profit or loss when pricing of equivalent products or
the underlying parameters become observable. When
the transaction is closed out, the amounts deferred are
released.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts or payments through the expected life of
the financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset
has been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria
for derecognition in accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

3. TEEFHEE (#F)

(c)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

(c) Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at
the grant date is recognised as an expense in full at
the grant date when the share options granted vest
immediately, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share option reserve).

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
option reserve will be transferred to accumulated
losses.

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or
services are measured at the fair values of the services
received, unless that fair value cannot be reliably
measured, in which case the services received are
measured by reference to the fair value of the share
options granted. The fair values of the services
received are recognised as expenses immediately,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share option
reserve) when the Group obtains the goods or when
the counterparties render services, unless the goods or
services qualify for recognition as assets.

3. XTEEFHEE (#F)

(c) FEEFHE (&)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-T—tF+-A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

(c) Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Related parties

(a)

A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(il)y is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

()  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

3. XTEEFHEE (#F)

(c) TEEFHE (&)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

(c) Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(0)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply: (Continueq)

(vili)

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the group or to the
group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those

family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i)

(i

(ii)

that person’s children and spouse or domestic

partner;

children of that person’s spouse or domestic

partner; and

dependents of that person or that person’s

spouse or domestic partner.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Mining right

The mining right represents the right of Sifa Mining to
conduct mining activities in Huangshi City, Hubei Province,
the PRC. The mining right is amortised using the units of
production method based on the proven and probable
mineral reserves.

The latest 2-year mining operating permit, which Sifa Mining
was allowed to carry out exploration activities only, but not
exploitation activities, had been expired on 25 September
2016. Since then, the Group has been preparing for the
application of the mining operating permit.

Because of the DLR Announcement issued on 21
December 2017 as stated in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements, the directors are of the opinion that
there is material uncertainty on whether the Group will
be successful in the application for the mining operating
permit. As a consequent, the directors assumed the Group
is unable to obtain the mining operating permit in the
impairment assessment of the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit of the mining business (the “CGU").
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+tF+-_A=+—HILtFE

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Mining right (Continued)

The directors would like to reiterate that the DLR has the
discretion of approving or even accepting the Group’s
application or not. If the DLR grants the mining operating
permit which allows the Group to carry out exploitation
activities, the recoverable amount of the CGU would be
approximately HK$178,000,000 as at 31 December 2017
which was estimated based on the cash flow projections
under income approach method prepared by the
management.

Estimated impairment of trade and other receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group takes into consideration the estimation of future cash
flows. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2017, the carrying amount of trade and other receivables
was approximately HK$12,641,000, net of allowance for
doubtful debts of approximately HK$46,374,000 (2016:
HK$40,256,000, net of allowance for doubtful debts of
approximately HK$24,028,000).
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objective of managing capital is to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes other borrowings as disclosed in Note 27 and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and various reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of their review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associates thereto. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will
maintain its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as issue of new debt or
the redemption of existing debt.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.

The gearing ratio of the Group at the end of the reporting
period was as follows:

Debt =R
Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Net cash IR & FRE
Equity T a

Net debt to equity ratio FEREHEREE

EXERER

AEEZEAERBRDREAEEER
BEE EMAKRRIEHROR  FRRER
AEAEE NS YERFREZER
RIELURIEE R -

AEEEARBREER (REME27H
BEEMES) RARAEE ARG
# (BREBTRARZEFEE)

ARREFTTERRNERNRE el &
FEBEAKRARMEERR REEFZ
HREE  AKREERIRERE  BITH
B RBETHEGREEREGEHERFHE
EEEARARE-

AEBMBRBRBALFHEZITE -

(]

ZIN-S

i

REEMRZEERBLERET:

e REREEEEY

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TFHET
14,878 13,762
(18,364) (16,000)
(3,486) (2,238)
31,409 106,663

N/A & HB N/A 758 F
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. R ITH
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) £HTAHEF
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Financial assets MKEE
Loans and receivables (including B ERER
cash and cash equivalents) (BERENBEEEY) 25,544 24,788
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE
— at cost — R AR 2,449 4,903
Held-for-trading investments BIEEERE
— at fair value i /NS 1,251 1,254
Financial liabilities g S =R
Financial liabilities measured BEEKAFTE
at amortised cost BxaE 43,297 40,449

(b)

The directors considered that the carrying amounts
of the above financial assets and financial liabilities
carried at amortised cost approximate to their fair
value, except for the available-for-sale investments
carried at cost less impairment because the range of
reasonable fair values estimates is so significant that its
fair value cannot be measured reliably (Note 19).

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial assets included available-
for-sale investments, held-for-trading investments,
trade and other receivables, amounts due from
an associate and a non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary, and cash and cash equivalents. The
Group’s major financial liabilities included trade and
other payables, amounts due to a related party and
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries, and other
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk
(foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. Management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

(b)

EEZRA LMIREHEKAEZ T
EERVBABRBEZ AFEM
HOERRANMBEENEZ THE
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. ERMITH (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BEEBEZEFERKE (/&)
(Continued)
Market risk 5 R k&

(i) Foreign currency risk

() SEEE

Several subsidiaries of the Group are exposed to
foreign currency risk primarily arising from foreign
currency bank deposits, other receivables and
trade and other payables.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s significant
monetary assets and liabilities which are
denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities
at the end of reporting period are as follows:

Liabilities
afE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FERT FET
HK$ BT 2,450 2,638

AR E % R B A R NS
B TERBIERTER H
il FE U R K DA B FE S B 5 BR R %
H Al A AR o

2R E B A E LA AR RS

EEEREEE AN BB
BrEREREERABGBEZER
BT
Assets
BE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FAT
20 20

The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation
of HK$. The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 4% (2016: 4%) appreciation in the
functional currency of the relevant subsidiaries
(RMB) against the above foreign currency. 4%
(2016: 4%) represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at
the end of reporting period for a 4% (2016: 4%)
change in the exchange rates. A strengthening of
the functional currency of the relevant subsidiaries
against the above foreign currency would give rise
to the following impact to the Group’s loss for the
year, or vice versa.

REBEXEEE BT 2 EEKE
Bk TREIAEERBHE
NAMEEER (ARE) N bt
SNEFHEA% (ZT—RNF :14%)
ZEHREE 4% (ZFE—RNF:
4% ) RE B ETHMNEFE R 7] B
REBEH 2T b - GREDN
EBRERMRBEZINETEE
BE YRERBLEEAUES
4% (ZZ—RF 1 4%) 28R
BnE - WHERBRARNEE
B P INEAE BEAEE
CEEBEELENTVE R2
AR
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(M)

(i)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

FREBERD
—BTT

Decrease in loss for the year
- HK$

In the management’s opinion, the above
sensitivity analysis is not necessarily
representative of the inherent foreign currency risk
as the exposure at year end does not reflect the

exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is not exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to its fixed-rate borrowing
(see Note 27 for details) as they are carried at
amortised costs. The Group currently does not
have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

The Group is not exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk as the interest rate of borrowing is fixed
(see Note 27 for details).

6. ERIT A (&)

(b)

HERBEEEEREE (&)

mEER ()

(i) srEmEEE(E)

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TAET
97 105

(ii)

EEERR BRNFEMEHZ
Ja g 3 A S R AN 4 T TR 3 2 [
B M EABRESNIL T —E
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FE B

HRESEE (FBEREME27)
LA SR AN DB - AR B B 7R
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. ERMITH (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(b) BEREBEEZEFERHE (&)

(Continued)
Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
its trade and other receivables, amounts due from
an associate and a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary, and bank balances. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit
risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customers as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customers operate. Ongoing
credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition
of trade customers. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

In addition, the Group had concentration of credit
risk on its liquid funds as 99% (2016: 99%) of bank
balances were placed with five (2016: five) banks.
However, the credit risk on liquid funds is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit
quality.

FERR

AEBZEERBRIEREEEWE
29 R SR e B At R B K~ B M — DB
BREIN M E QR — R IEEHE
BRZHRIBRRITHES - EEER

EERE IRHBEERANEEMAE
ZHEEERR-

LI U E 5 AR A0 K H 8 MK BR B
OB EERBRE—E2BEIEP
BFERZEHNEEFE - BHFEE
RRE P XN B HIR IR 2 4 MR
MRz UAREBEFPZARE
FREFPEEME ZQERE A
SEENBE TR ZMBRRETH
BEENGE - AEERETGERER
WK o

BESN - A AEEI9% ( —ZF—RF -
99% ) WITHFREFRNAEM (ZF—X
FREMRT WAKEHREEFTR
BEEERR - AN ARRZHF
RRFEREEEZRIT BWARPER
ZEEERBRBAR-
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+tF+-_A=+—HILtFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risks. The
Group’s equity price risk is mainly concentrated on
equity instruments quoted in the PRC stock exchange.
Management monitors the price risks and will consider
hedging the risk exposure should the need arises.

The management considered that the Group’'s
exposure to the equity price risk on held-for-trading
investment is not significant. Accordingly, no sensitivity
analysis is presented.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the recognised of borrowings as well as the cash flows
from operating activities.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its derivative and non-
derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities and the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.

6. ERIT A (&)

(b) BEREBEEZEFERHE (&)

H B B

AEBERE £ BRAE 7 AR K
EBRER BEEEATRART —HNKRE
MENEE I ER - AREHKER
BREEEPRTERLFRXFABRED
RATR - EEEEREBRRER L
REFBERZEL HEAR -

ERERSARERFEEERE K
EORERRYTEA B &S
HHEE DN -

REBETER

EERPECERE AKREEZY
HREEERRERARAREEER
HES R RBATFEY WRE
ReRBRBHZHE - BEEESER
BEZHERBAAREE R 2R

< =
JILE ©

TREIAEBITERIFITERB A
BZRBENNMFE - ZRREM
BRBZARURRSRERAEET]
RABRECRFEHRE BEMNER
RAGZBRERE -



6

Annual Report 2017

—ZET—tFHR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-T—tF+-A=+—HILFE

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continueq)

Liquidity table

2017
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Amount due to a related party
- a director
Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries
Other borrowings
- fixed rate

2016
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Amount due to a related party
- a director
Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries
Other borrowings
- fixed rate

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

—E-tE
FTERBER
ERESEFREENER
Ef—2EBEALZHE
-—4E%
eI BAR
ErHRE R
EifEE
-E8

“E-RF
FITEHBER
BB R &R REMENER
BN RBEALZE
-—%8%
ERKEAR
FERHIERRZHE
EtRE
it

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate

ik S
BRRIE

8.47

Weighted
average
effective

interest rate

mEFH
UIRS
%

8.47

6.

eRITA (&)

(b) BEREBEEZEFERHE (&)

RBESER (£
mEBEEE

On demand More than 1 Total Carrying
orless  yearbutless undiscounted  amount as at
than 1 year  than 2 years cash flows 31.12.2017
i
—E-tf
=
RERY SMER KERRS Sr=[EZ
HME HRF nEAE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR TR TR TER
24,583 - 24,583 24,583
165 - 165 165
3,671 - 3,671 3,671
16,138 - 16,138 14,878
44,557 - 44,557 43,297
On demand More than 1 Total Carrying
or less year butless  undiscounted amount as at
than 1 year than 2 years cash flows 31.12.2016
#®
ZTRE
+ZA
RESH LIMER FERRS =t+-B2
SPIE DHE nEEE RAfE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR T
22,139 - 22,139 22,139
1,296 < 1,296 1,296
3,252 - 3,252 3,262
1,166 14,928 16,094 13,762
27,8583 14,928 42,781 40,449
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+tF+-_A=+—HILtFE

7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets
and liabilities

The Group determines its operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the chief operating
decision-makers (the “CODM”) that are used to make
strategic decisions.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group has two reportable segments. The segments
are managed separately as each business offers
different products and services and requires different
business strategies. The following summary describes
the operations in each of the Group’s reportable
segments:

e  Mobile phone business

e  Mining business

Corporate expenses, corporate assets and corporate
liabilities are not allocated to the reportable segments
as they are not included in the measure of the
segments’ profit or loss, segments’ assets and
segments’ liabilities that are used by the CODM for
assessment of segment performance.

2 EHEMK WS

(a) HEHDEHRAIZEHS W8

w BERBEBZHEK

AEEERHELRBREZETES
BARE([ETBEZERRE])EMN
ZmEBEREENE

HE-T—+tF+-A=+—HILE
ER AREAEMETZES B
A SRR RER A RB
i B 7 B SR EUR L0 305 B B -
EHUDHHER U THERLA
B E AT RO B2 EE

s BIERER

s REEW®

MREESH CEEERCERAR
WERBAFATREERRENGE D
RERER 2O RED DHMEER
DHMEBEEZFERN RAREROE

ERAEHDE-



Annual Report 2017

T —tFR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-T—tF+-A=+—HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued)

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets

and liabilities (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Reportable segment revenue
from external customers

Reportable segment loss

Depreciation and amortisation

Loss on disposal of plant and
equipment

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of plant and equipment

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of mining right

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of prepayments paid
to suppliers

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of trade and other
receivables

Recovery of write down of
inventories

Reportable segment assets
Reportable segment liabilities

7. oWMERRWE (&)

(a) TEZHEDHRAIZHEDH Wz 1B
w BEEREBBZHEK (&)

BE-_Z—+tH#+=ZHB=+—H1L

FE
Mobile
phone Mining
business business Total
B
BEEK PRIE T et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
KREINABEFPHAZ
7 BB A 7,436 - 7,436
2Ry HEE (28,815) (186,993) (215,808)
e R 3 310 313
HERE RZRE 2B
37 - 37
BB M 5% e R
REEE - 8,965 8,965
HREEER ZRBEEE
- 174,589 174,589
A HERN SN 2 BN IR
R ZIBEEE
24,903 - 24,903
W E 5 R R H Ath fE U
RRER 2 REEE
1,170 457 1,627
T & MUR =]
(516) - (516)
AE2maHEE 29,902 5,181 35,083
2Ky HEaE (3,936) (39,247) (43,183)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+tF+-_A=+—HILtFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued) 7. S EER R % (&)

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of
reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets

and liabilities (Continued)

Revenue

Reportable segment revenue and
consolidated revenue

Loss before income tax

Reportable segment loss

Fair value loss on held-for-trading investments
Impairment loss recognised in respect of

available-for-sale investments
Interest income
Miscellaneous income
Motor vehicle expenses

Staff costs (including directors’ remunerations)

Rental expenses

Corporate expenses

Share of results of associates
Finance costs

Consolidated loss before income tax

(a) HEHDEHRAIZEHS W8

BRAT S BLAT B 1R

2% EEE
FIFEEEREZATEER
A ERE B ZRERRE

FBMA

IR A

MEX

BIMA (BREREEFHH)
HEXH

X H
DIHBERNRZ¥E
AR

BRPTIS B AT AR & B 1R

w BERBEBZHEK (&)

2017
HK$’000
Fi8

7,436

(215,808)
(102)

(2,614)

156
783
(144)
(5,592)
(636)
(2,667)
(6)

(1,208)

(227,838)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-T—tF+-A=+—HILFE
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued) 7. DHERRWE (£F)

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of

(a) HEHDEHRAIZEHS W8
w BERBEBZHEK (&)

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets

and liabilities (Continued)

2017
HK$’000
FExT
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets 2RO HEE 35,083
Unallocated corporate assets ROBBEEE
— Investments in associates —BENR 2K E 1,145
- Available-for-sale investments —AHEERE 2,449
— Held-for-trading investments —FEEEKRE 1,251
- Club memberships — ek 888
- Cash and cash equivalents -ReKREEEY 3,508
— Others —Hfb 552
Consolidated total assets HEEERE 44,876
Liabilities =R
Reportable segment liabilities AE2moHaE 43,183
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROBEBEBRE
— Tax payables — IR 4,574
— Amount due to director, Mr. Lau —ENEERZLEZRIE 165
— Others —HAth 3,005
Consolidated total liabilities e BEARE 50,927
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+tF+-_A=+—HILtFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued) 7.

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of
reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets
and liabilities (Continueqd)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Reportable segment revenue REINAEFH A 25

from external customers 7 U
Reportable segment loss A2WmnEEE

Depreciation and amortisation e R

Impairment loss recognised FIRBEER 2B AERE
in respect of mining right

Impairment loss recognised BEIEUE 5 BR 3 R H g U
in respect of trade and RRERRERE
other receivables

Write-back of trade and BOENEFERR
other payables H b JE T BR 3K

Recovery of write down of 15 & MUR =
inventories

Reversal of write-back of JE A<F [2] 10 BR B =) 7 =)

rebate payables

Reportable segment assets AZ2®OHEE
Reportable segment liabilities AZ®|moHAERE

THER KR WS (&)

(a) HEHDEHRAIZEHS W8

w BERBEBZHEK (&)

RE-T—AF+-A=+—HItF

J—ﬁ-‘
Mobile
phone Mining
business business Total
% &
BEES RUEZE @ET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT
110,638 - 110,638
(5,138) (86,799) (91,937)
6 315 321
- 84,240 84,240
798 - 798
(159) - (159)
(286) - (286)
20 - 20
54,634 182,602 237,236
(3,333) (74,431) (77,764)
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(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of
reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets

and liabilities (Continueqd)

Revenue

Reportable segment revenue and
consolidated revenue

Loss before income tax

Reportable segment loss

Fair value loss on held-for-trading investments

Interest income

Miscellaneous income

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
available-for-sale investments

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
club memberships

Lapse of unlisted warrants

Staff costs (including directors’ remunerations)

Corporate expenses

Share of results of associates

Finance costs

Consolidated loss before income tax

Assets

Reportable segment assets
Unallocated corporate assets
— Investments in associates
— Available-for-sale investments
— Held-for-trading investments
— Club memberships
— Cash and cash equivalents
— Others

Consolidated total assets

SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued) 7. S BER Rk (#&)

(a) HEHDEHRAIZEHS W8

BRFT S BLAT B 1R

AE2% 0 EEE
FIEEEREZAFEER
S WA

FEEWA

AL ERERR ZBERE

EMERERZRERR

FE LT R AR RE R
BIMA (BRERESFHM)
EXH
DIEBE QR Z XA
& B A

—BMERRZKE
—AffHERE
—RBEEERE
—Emes

- RERBREFED
—Hfl

HEEEMAE

w BEEREBBZHEK (&)

2016
HK$'000
TAET

110,638

(91,937)
(423)

25

769

(6,340)

(107,354)

237,236

1,151
4,903
1,254
872
582
545

246,543
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 E#ZEZ—F

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continuead) 7. o

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets

and liabilities (Continueq)

—tEFET A=t HLEFE

MER R WS (&)

(a) HEHEDBRAIZHD W18
#w BERBEZHEK (&)

2016
HK$’000
FAET
Liabilities =L
Reportable segment liabilities 2O IPEE 77,764
Unallocated corporate liabilities XD EEJL%E &
- Tax payables — IR 4,574
- Receipt in advance —TBUSRIR 15,5699
- Amount due to director, Mr. Lau —ENEELLEE A 1,296
— Others —H i 2,898
Consolidated total liabilities SEBREBE 102,131
(b) Geographical information (b) B
During 2017 and 2016, the Group’s operations and RIE—tEFER_ZT—RF A5EH
non-current assets are situated in the PRC in which all ZEBRIERBDEEHMNTH M
of its revenue was derived. EER R R A PE -

(c) Information about major customer

In 2017, revenues from two (2016: two) customers
in the mobile phone business of the Group
amounted to HK$5,692,000 and HK$983,000 (2016:
HK$65,220,000 and HK$35,011,000) respectively,
each of which represent 77% and 13% of the Group’s
revenue.

(d) Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable or received for goods sold and
services provided in the normal course of business, net
of discounts and sales related taxes.

(c) FRTEEFZEH

RIE—tF FEEBYEFEEY
REZ <_-::—/\¢ M &) E P B
=9 Bl &5,692,000% 7T }2.983,00058
7T (ZZ — 754 1 65,220,000/ T &
35,011,000 7T) S AEE K=
77%%13% °

k

(d) Wz

Waimo WKWK E 2 X FER
B HEBERXBEARETHEELER
RERERBEKRKE R 2 KA I
BRI RIEERBRE-
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OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HixzRER
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTEx FHET
Exchange gain/(loss) ERWE (EER) 3 (62)
Fair value loss on held-for-trading BIEBEEREZ A FEEE
investments (102) (423)
Impairment loss recognised in respect t A {1 & 1% & R
of available-for-sale investments BIERE (2,614) (6,340)
Impairment loss recognised in respect FL & AT HEiER 2 REEIE
of club membership = (210)
Impairment loss recognised in respect FEE & R EER 2 REEE
of plant and equipment (8,965) -
Impairment loss recognised in respect i A {1 J& 7 2 < = J& 1< 7B
of prepayments paid to suppliers R ZBERE (24,903) -
Impairment loss recognised in respect Ht & U E 5 BR 30 2 B b fE UL
of trade and other receivables IR IERZ REEE (1,627) (798)
Lapse of unlisted warrants IE E R AR K - 1,568
Written off of plant and equipment i 85 g BB N 7% (37) S
Written-off of trade payable MEENE SRR - 159
Reversal of write-back of rebate JE 1<F [B] 10 BR 3 =) 2 =)
payables = (20)
(38,245) (6,116)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+tF+-_A=+—HILtFE

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BERAK
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THET
Interests on other borrowings wholly ~ ZBRAFRBEHEE 2
repayable within five years HiEE B 1,208 1,278
10. INCOME TAX CREDIT 10. FIBHIER

Fortune (Shanghai) International Trading Co., Ltd (“Fortune

RE(LB)EREZARAR ([REL

Shanghai”), EBEZEBZ 5 ER QA (“Shanghai Bl EEBEREBRESARRD 7”t/i
Yuanjia”), KB ME R EBAEZEBR AR (“Zhuhai BRl) KEMERERAREBEERA

Reminda”), &= A IR EEE G R A A (“Sifa Mmmg”) and T
R E BRI AR QR (“Zhejiang Aoying”) were established
in the PRC and subject to the Enterprises Income Tax
(“EIT”) rate of 25% (2016: 25%).

No provision for income tax has been made as the Group
did not have any estimated assessable profits during the
year (2016: Nil).

The amount of income tax credit in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income represented deferred
tax arising from reversal of temporary differences during the
year (Note 30).

(T8 ERE]) ‘EE@%%@E%HK&A Al
( rﬁﬁﬁéﬁg% ) ETTREE BREBRA
—T(Fﬁﬁil B REBRERK - W BR25%
TE—RNF25%) 2 EMER ([
FRIGHL]) B AT o

RN ARBRNAEE Y EERGETZER
B Al - WA BIEL A REE (ZF—X
FE)

SEAEEEWARANMERE R 2 £ EERN
FEZENEEMZEEL 2 RTEHE
(Fff5£30) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-T—tF+-A=+—HILFE

10. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued) 10. TBHER (£)
The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the REEZHEREBECHEGAEEZEBARZ
loss before income tax per the consolidated statement of GET SR ERBEERENT

comprehensive income as follows:

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Loss before income tax R P15 B A S 18 (227,838) (107,354)
Tax credit at the domestic income tax 1% 7N B 15 55 Ff R 25%
rate of 25% (2016: 25%) (Note) ZE—RNF:25%)FTE
B R (M) (56,960) (26,838)
Tax effect of share of results of DB ERNE 2 EE Y
associates MBEE 1 149
Tax effect of expenses not deductible N A]HIFi AL 2
for tax purpose Mg 9,695 1,240
Tax effect of income not taxable for ~ HERBWA 2
tax purpose MBEE (972) (292)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERTHIEE 1B L&) A TE1E
and utilisation of tax losses and 548 K ] FO B0
deductible temporary differences EBIUMBEE 6,205 3,659
Effect of different tax rates of HthalxgEREE s 56
group entities operating in other ERTRAME 22
jurisdictions 915 1,023

Income tax credit stk e (41,116) (21,059)




126

China Fortune Holdings Limited

FEREZERBERAR

10. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

At the end of reporting period, the Group had estimated
unused tax losses of approximately HK$166,364,000
(2016: HK$166,456,000) available for offset against future
profits. The tax losses are subject to the final assessment
by the tax authorities in the respective jurisdictions where
the tax losses arising from. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the estimated unused tax losses
due to unpredictability of future profit streams. Included
in unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately
HK$32,071,000 (2016: HK$37,876,000) that may be
carried forward for a period of five years from their
respective year of origination. The remaining unrecognised
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of reporting period, the Group also had
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$8,808,000 (2016: HK$8,949,000). No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in relation to these deductible
temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

Note: The domestic income tax rate represents the EIT rate where
the Group’s operations are substantially based.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E IR AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+tF+-_A=+—HILtFE

10. FiIGHER (&)

REMEAR  REEHF AT AEEIREK
A 2 MR B) AT IE B 1R 4Y /5166,364,000
BT (ZZF — /N4 166,456,0008 7T ) ©
MIBEIBASEEREBBNER R
[ B 575 M B VE AR 1R T Y o R AN DA TR
R g B ROR - A B B AT IS AT 2 1A R B
AzRMEBBREREEHIBEE AKX
TR TR I8 & 18 2 B 18 49/832,071,0007% 7T
—Z— X% :37,876,0008T) Al B &
EEFEREERF - FITHRERNIE
JE5 18 Rl o] fE PR B A5 85 o

REFMR AKETEAINREREZE
#18,808,000/% 7T ( =& — /<4 : 8,949,000
BIL) c MR A KABEEL AT MR E K Z5
FRAEHEERTEN  RALERZF AT
MEREZRERAECHEEE -

fisE: AMABHMEEARNEEARNT D EBE
A2 EEMEHRBE-
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LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

Loss before income tax is arriving at

after charging:

Auditor’s remuneration

Cost of inventories recognised as
expenses

Depreciation of plant and equipment

Staff costs
— directors’ emoluments (Note 12)
— salaries and allowances for other
staffs
— retirement benefit scheme
contribution (excluding directors)

and after crediting:

Service income from provision of
logistics and promotion services

Interest income

Recovery of write down of inventories

Government grants

E R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-T—tF+-A=+—HILFE

M. BRFTEHAIER

BR P15 B AT 5 18

B

ZEET B 2
EERSRAX ZFERA

BEREREBEZITE

B TR
—E =W (ME12)
—H 8 THE o KER

—RKAR A ET &I R
(TERERES)

REA:

REDRMEBREZ
ARFG WA

FBWA

T 5 R =)

BT 5 B

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
970 949
7,147 108,801
331 343
4,253 4,520
4,199 4,995
198 488
8,650 10,003
44 110
156 25
516 286

= 23
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+tF+-_A=+—HILtFE

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

12.EEM &

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven

(2016: six) directors during the year were as follows:

2017

Fees

Salaries and allowances

Retirement benefit
scheme contribution

Total emoluments

2016

Fees

Salaries and allowances

Retirement benefit
scheme contribution

Total emoluments

Notes:

“E-tF
He
Fo Rk

RIREMEEIHR

Fe Rk

FRAENKEMNTELZ(ZF—XRF: R

EARBHEBIER

e @m

fE=EEE2HEMT:
Lau Chang  Wong Lit
Siu Ying Luo Law Wing Seng, Chor, Lam
(“Mr. Lau”) Xi Zhi Chun Kwan Victor Alexis  WangYu  Man Kit Total
g0 E
(T81%%£]) BBz  EERH® BkE BN I8 HXB B
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(PzE1) (Mizt2)
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKEO00  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TER TER FEL TER TAL TER TAR
- - 100 100 75 - 25 300
3,342 110 - - - 449 - 3,901
3 13 - - - 36 - 52
3,345 123 100 100 75 485 25 4,253
= = 100 100 100 = = 300
3,542 167 = = = 457 = 4,166
3 15 - - - 36 - 54
3,545 182 100 100 100 493 - 4,520
B

1. Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis was resigned as the independent

non-executive director of the Company on 3 October 2017.

2. Mr. Lam Man Kit was appointed as the independent non-

executive director of the Company on 3 October 2017.

1. BANEER -_ZT—tFTA=ZHEEAR

REVBIUENTES-

2. MXBAENR-_ZT—tF+-HA=AREHE
RARFBYIFRITES -
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13. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Out of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, two (2016: two) were directors of the
Company whose emoluments are disclosed in Note 12. The
emoluments of the remaining three (2016: three) individuals
were as follows:

Salaries and allowances e MOEBRL
Retirement benefit scheme contribution iE ¥k 18 F &t 2 4 5%

Their emoluments were within the following band:

Up to HK$1,000,000 1,000,0007% 7T LA A

None of the five highest paid individuals waived any
emoluments in current and prior years.

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals, including directors, as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office.

13. EEM S

ARB IR BEBHA LR AR (=
TN ) AR TES  KMER
FEE1 209 B BR - BT =fiz (B — < : =

fATZBEWT:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TERT TAET
1,392 1,303
54 54
1,446 1,357

ZEREZMENFTIIEE:

2017 2016
Number of Number of
employees employees

EBEHE EE#E
3 3

RAFERBEFERN AUZSHEAL
B R UCE T B & -

HE-_Z—+tFR-ZFT—-—X~"F+=HA
=T —HLEFE AEREBERNIURES
FAT(BEES)INENME  EAR
% M ASKTE AR S B B 2 BN & sk
REERAE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 E#ZEZ—F

14.

15.

—tEFET A=t HLEFE
DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during current and prior
years, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of
reporting period (2016: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of loss per share for the year is based on
the loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$111,714,000 (2016: loss of HK$49,807,000) and the
weighted average number of 911,673,645 shares in issue
during the year (2016: 832,063,442 shares in issue).

No diluted loss per share is presented as the effect of all
potential ordinary shares is anti-dilutive for the years ended
31 December 2017 and 2016.

15.

NAFEERBEFEA  BEIRMS SEIE
e -B2WMBALEE B ARIFEE IR EM
% TE—RFE)-

BREE

FRERBEIIBEBEFARRREEAZ
FEAEES 111,714,000 70 (—ZT — /N F:
[E51849,807,000% L) R F RN E B TR D
Z S 15 #911,673,6450% ( —ZF — X
F :832,063,4420 BB TR )FTE -

HREBE-Z—tFR_ZT—XE+_-A
=t- EIJJ:ﬁEZﬁﬁ*ﬁ/aE R AR
HENE MUEEYSREEEE-
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16. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Jﬂﬁ%&%ﬁ{ﬁ
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor  Construction

improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total

BA -
HEXE RKERRE AE ERIR Bt
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTET AT TET FET

COST B

At 1 January 2016 R_E-RF-A—H 8,885 3,727 4,880 6,469 23,961
Exchange adjustments ERAR (345) (151) (79) (435) (1,010)
Additions wm - 15 - - 15
Write-off Wiss (4,216) (456) (2,657) - (7,329)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—R"F+ZA=+—H 4,324 3,135 2,144 6,034 15,637
Exchange adjustments I 3§ 3% 307 158 35 489 989
Additions AN - 6 - - 6
Disposal & - - 62) - 62)
Write-off i - (64) - - (64)
At 31 December 2017 RZB—+t&+-A=+—-H 4,631 3,235 2,117 6,523 16,506

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND 3B KR &

IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2016 RZE—-"E—H—H 6,018 3,098 4,812 - 13,928
Exchange adjustments ERAR (164) (116) (74) - (354)
Provided for the year FERE 233 104 6 = 343
Eliminated on write-off WsE B EBR (4,216) (456) (2,657) = (7,329)
At 31 December 2016 R-BE-RE+-A=1+—H 1,871 2,630 2,087 - 6,588
Exchange adjustments ERAE 216 151 26 271 664
Provided for the year FERE 229 99 3 = 331
Eliminated on disposal o E R R - - (20) - (20)
Eliminated on write-off WEHE R = (64) = = (64)
Impairment loss (Note 17) wEEE (ME17) 2,315 398 - 6,252 8,965
At 31 December 2017 R=F—+t&+-A=1+—H 4,631 3,214 2,096 6,523 16,464
CARRYING VALUE REE

At 31 December 2017 R e & o SRR e - 21 21 - 42

At 31 December 2016 RZB—7"E+ZA=+-H 2,453 505 57 6,034 9,049
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+tF+-_A=+—HILtFE

17. MINING RIGHT 17. BRIERE

COST
At 1 January 2016
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2016
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2017

ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2016

Exchange adjustments

Impairment for the year

At 31 December 2016
Exchange adjustments
Impairment for the year

At 31 December 2017

CARRYING VALUE
At 31 December 2017

At 31 December 2016

The mining right represents the right of Sifa Mining to
conduct mining activities in Huangshi City, Hubei Province,
the PRC. The mining right is amortised using the units of

Bt REE
RZE—RF—HA—H
&5

FERRIE
RZEBE—R"F+_A=+—H
PE

FERREE
R—ZE—tF+=_A=+—H

BRHEE
RZE—+tF+=-A=+—H

R-B—AR"FE+-_HA=+—~H

production method based on the proven and probable 3 o

mineral reserves.

HK$’'000
TAET

437,920
(29,440)

408,480
33,120

441,600

171,578
(15,854)
84,240

239,964
27,047
174,589

441,600

168,516

REEEEERERENTBEALtEEAME
THREES RN - RBEEDEREHRHA
REERERENEENAERENLE



Annual Report 2017

T —tFR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-T—tF+-A=+—HILFE

17. MINING RIGHT (Continued)

Mining exploitation/operating permit

After the expiration of a 5-year mining exploitation permit on
25 September 2012, Sifa Mining obtained twice a renewed
mining operating permit for 2 years from the Ministry of
Land and Resources of the PRC (FZE AR EMBEE L &R
#6) (“MLR™), under which Sifa Mining was allowed to carry
out exploration activities only, but not exploitation activities.
The latest 2-year mining operating permit was expired
on 25 September 2016. Since then, the Group has been
preparing for the application of the mining operation permit.

However, on 21 December 2017, the Department of Land
and Resources of Hubei Province of the People’s Republic
of China (the “DLR”) issued an announcement (the “DLR
Announcement”) in respect of the deadline of application
for renewal of the expired mining operating permit. The
DLR instructed the owners of the expired mining operating
permits as identified in the DLR Announcement has to
furnish the application procedures for the renewal before 28
February 2018. If the owners fail to do so, they are required
to de-register the mining operating permits before 31 March
2018 by themselves or the DLR will de-register the permits
instead. The Group was not able to furnish the application
before the deadline. The Group, through its lawyer,
submitted a letter on 8 February 2018 to the DLR for the
clarification of the Group’s situation on whether the Group
was allowed to extend the renewal application deadline or
submit a new application for the mining operating permit in
the future. Up to the date of this report, the Group has not
yet received the reply from the DLR.

17. SRUERE (&)

R F o &

T FHRBAAIER_FT—_F1A
:—?—ﬂEHEiﬁfé'ﬁﬁéﬁ}é%Eﬁﬁu\HXT—rEP
ZEARANBEELERS (TRLERB])
RERHMENKEERET I E B
BBEEXEREETHRMIEMBEE -
BRIMERRBHAIECR T —RFN
AZThARER- Bl NEEIEEEER
TERT A Z A AF

R R_T—+tF+_RA=+—H FhE
ARZMBBILEE T ERE ([HEER
EENRPFEECERMRETIZE 2K
BEARE L AM (B EREAM]) o E
TERBET BB REAMIBA K
A EEMIERANAR_TE—-—N\FZ
A+ N\BRITHREE 2 RERT - ME
BARETKERRER MIREAR_-F
—N\FZA=Z+— BRI BfTHERETT
E - RBABE L EREA A AIE AEE
ARERXBBBERATKRF  AEER
Z-N\FZANBRBHFZMME L EIR
BREX-—HEHMG URAEEESELERL
REBHB I HEHRIN BEREIFN
RESNERREEAEEZBR-BEE
AREBH AEEDRKEE L ERE
ZEE-
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17. MINING RIGHT (Continued)

Mining exploitation/operating permit (Continueqd)

The directors are of the opinion that there is material
uncertainty on whether the Group will be successful in the
application for the mining operating permit because of the
DLR Announcement. The directors have factored this into
their assessment of the recoverable amount of the Group’s
mining right and related plant and equipment, and the
carrying amount of the related deferred tax liabilities as at
31 December 2017, and on the assumption that the Group
cannot renew the permit, provided a full impairment of
the mining right of HK$174,589,000 and related plant and
equipment of HK$8,965,000 and derecognised the related
deferred tax liabilities of HK$41,116,000 in profit or loss
during the year.

The directors would like to reiterate that the DLR has the
discretion of approving or even accepting the application
or not. If the DLR grants the mining operating permit which
allows the Group to carry out exploitation activities, the
impairment loss on the mining right and related plant and
equipment, and the adjustment on the deferred tax liabilities
provided for the year might be reversed.

At 31 December 2017, 100,000 tons (2016: 100,000 tons)
minerals included in the underlying reserves were pledged
to the other borrowings (Note 27).

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E IR AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+tF+-_A=+—HILtFE

17. RIERE (&)

REF A& (&)

EERR AEBEEHAI BB ERET
AFABE T EREAMMIFEERNTEE
M- BEERTEAEEAR T —EF+=
R=1T—B2&REERAEKE RRHEHT
KeeBREAEERIBEEERTAERD
AREERAE BEAEBEREEEZ:
A 7E - BB ERIEHE174,589,00078 T & A8 78
= K 3% 458,965,00078 L AT 7 2 B8R B
- W A8 2= BUE R AB B R T
1B & &41,116,000/8 7T ©

EFEHER BLERBARNBRE
WEXEERMNRFES -WE L ERE
BREREFFAIE (R ARBEETHEK
AE - REBEERAAERE R REREES
BARRFREL BB REN AR &S
Byggo-

R-EBE—+FE+_A=+—H HEH:=S
# 5100,000MF ( == —7< 4 : 100,00008 )
BECEABHEMEE Z KM (HF27) -
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

Cost of investments in unlisted

associates

Share of post-acquisition reserves

Exchange adjustments

Particulars of the associates as at 31 December 2017 and 0w

2016 are set out in Note 40.

E R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-T—tF+-A=+—HILFE

18. BERNT 2 RE

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&xT FAET

RIELEME S QA 2 " E KA
4,912 4,912
JEMR U BE 12 R 1S (3,705) (3,699)
PE 5 A (62) (62)
1,145 1,151

—EtFERE-RFT+_A=+—
Bz DA BSR40 ©

Summarised financial information of material ) EBEABELARZHBERHEE(ER

associate, adjusted for any difference in

accounting policies:

Ever Trillion Investments Limited

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Group’s share of net assets of
the associate

Year ended 31 December
Revenue

Loss from continuing operation
Dividend received from associate

FHEHEZEZEAE) :

Ever Trillion Investments Limited

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FiET
RENEE - _
ERBEE 2,713 2,713
mBaE (38) (25)
EmEBERE = =
2,675 2,688
REEFEEBE AR EEFE
1,145 1,151
HE+t-A=t—8HIEE
g - ik
REBBEEXEBZER (6) (5)

B 52 N E Y E R B - -
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 18. (B NF 2/ E (,fég)
i)  Summarised financial information (immaterial i) BEERHE(FEABEELRT):
associate):
Since 2016, the Group discontinued recognition of its BZZE—NFUR NEBD K HiE
share of losses of an associate, Beijing Feiying. REDRHE QAR RRE 2 B8 -
2017
HK$’000
FET
Unrecognised share of loss of associate RERDIEHE RA 2 FEEE
for the year 2,328
Accumulated unrecognised share of B2 AER B E QR ZERE
loss of associate 6,822
19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19. It HERE
Available-for-sale investments comprise: AHEERERTE:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Unlisted equity investments, EEMBRARE - LR
at cost (note a) (FtzEa) 14,977 14,977
Unlisted fund investment, at cost FLEMESEE EAAR 2,380 2,380
17,357 17,357
Less: allowance for impairment OB AR (14,908) (12,454)
2,449 4,903
The investments in unlisted equity securities and unlisted FELTRAFBHFIRERFELTELSERER
fund investment are measured at cost less impairment MEBREZKANBRBETZ2 BREEAH
at the end of reporting period because the range of EEATEGBTGHEBN AEEESER
reasonable fair values estimates is so significant that the AEEN ST EZSHREZRAFE
directors of the Group are of the opinion that fair value of
the investments cannot be measured reliably.
The Group does not intend to dispose the investments in AEEEENEHARNEEE EMRAZS

unlisted equity securities and fund investment in the near KERESIRE -
future.
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Included in the balance is a HK$10,234,000 (2016:
HK$10,234,000) equity interest in an unlisted private
company, in which, through its subsidiary, engaged

note a:

in developing mobile devices and operating system,

manufacturing and distribution of mobile devices.

Other unlisted equity investments are investments

in couple of private entities incorporated in different
jurisdictions and engaged in different business.

20. CLUB MEMBERSHIPS

19. I HHERE (&)

ffeEa :

ZEHEFE-FELTAERARK
1,210,234,0008 L (=2 — R~ F:
10,234,000/8 7T ) * #Z A B3 @ EH I
BARANREHERHRERLER
FoBERDHTERE

H3E EMBRAKREBNE TRAR
AEREREMAR IR ETRER 2
LEBERZKRE-

COST
At 1 January 2016
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2016
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2017

IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2016
Impairment loss recognised for the year

At 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017

CARRYING AMOUNT
At 31 December 2017

At 31 December 2016

Club memberships are stated at cost less any identified
impairment loss. For the purpose of impairment testing
on club memberships, the recoverable amount has been
determined based on fair value less costs to sell which

20. EFTE%E

HK$’000
FAT
R
R-ZZE—RF—H—H 1,382
PE i 5 (14)
RZEBE—R"F+=_A=+—H 1,368
FE 16
R-EBE—+HF+-_A=+—H 1,384
A
RZE—RF—A—H 286
FEERZ REEE 210
RZFE-—R"E+ZA=1—
—E—+tF+=-A=+ 496
REE
R-_ZE—+&+_-_A=+—H 888
R_ZE—XRFT+-—_A=+—H 872

represents the second-hand market price less cost of

disposal.

ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ

R RAIRPTRRE
&@$ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ$%ﬁ'ﬁﬂ:?ﬁ%
BB HERA -

LRER - AT E e
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+tF+-_A=+—HILtFE

21. INVENTORIES

Inventories comprise finished goods in:

Mobile phones business
Mining business

BHERELES
e ER

Included in the cost of inventories recognised as expense

for the year ended 31 December 2017 were recovery of
write down of inventories of HK$516,000 (2016: write down
of inventories of HK$286,000) which was caused by the

increase in the net realisable value.

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables
Less: accumulated allowance

Value-added-tax receivables
Prepayments to suppliers
Other receivables and deposits
Less: accumulated allowance

Trade and other receivables

A 5 85 3
B B AR

&Y I B 7Y

B R R

H it YRR R
B RET A

FEU 5 BR 3R B At B U BR 3R

21. 78
FEBREHEKA:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TAET
867 58
1,231 1,139
2,098 1,197

BE_ZT-—+tHF+-_A=+—HLEEZ
ERARI ZTFERABIEAR A SR
R EIG N E & 2 7 B U [E1516,000
BT (ZF —XF 17 E#Mm286,000%8

JT) e

22. B E 5 BRI H th FE AR K

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#B T FHET
14,148 18,049
(14,135) (17,998)
13 51

379 412
36,641 34,042
7,847 11,781
(32,239) (6,030)
12,641 40,256
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group generally requests for full prepayment from its
trade customers but it also allows certain trade customers
a credit period of 30 to 90 days. The following is an aged
analysis of trade receivables (net of allowance) presented
based on the invoice date as at the end of reporting period:

0 to 30 days TEr=+H
31 to 90 days =+—&EA+AH
91 to 365 days N+—Z2=BTHH

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines its
credit limits. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed
periodically. Majority of the trade receivables that are neither
past due nor impaired have no default payment history
and good credit rating under the Group’s internal credit
assessment.

22. BWE 5 R K H 1t B W AR X

(#&)

AEE-REKEZFEFBENEHAIA
BRETETESEP=TEATHZE
EH-NERPEERAZREEZIER(E
REE) REREH25 2 KRk o
T

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET

3 5

9 12

1 34

13 51

EMEIMHERPA AREEFTHEER
FPZEEEE RAEAEEERR THR
ARTEPZRE -REAKEANBEE
A fh KRER Y BEAR B I I KRR B 2 FE UL &
ZEFLEBHERCEBERSERRLT-
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+tF+-_A=+—HILtFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group does not hold any collateral over its trade
debts. The following is an aged analysis of the carrying
amounts of trade debts that were past due at the end of
reporting period but for which the Group has not provided
for impairment loss because management are of the opinion
that the fundamental credit quality of the customers has not
deteriorated:

Less than 90 days past due =iy AR =
Over 90 days but less than 365 days #Ei#E:@ A+ B

past due BLR=A-+HAB

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts in
respect of trade and other receivables

Balance at beginning of year FEEH
Exchange adjustments b 5 58 B

Impairment losses recognised
during the year

Amounts written off as uncollectible i #4E EU Bl 2 & 58

Balance at end of year FIREE R

The Group recognised impairment loss on individual
assessment based on the accounting policy stated in
Note 3.

FRERZEERBR

(#&)

22. BWE 5 R K H 1t B W AR X

AEBEVTEREZEFFETMNERR-
UTRRERMNEE RN BREEEEE
RAREPZEAREEERI RBILMER
AEBEYEFEHRESEREBEZESER

2 BRE A R ER A -
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TERT TAET
12 17
1 34
13 51

B2 &g

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$’000

FE T FHET

24,028 24,045

(299) (481)

26,530 798

(3,885) (334)

46,374 24,028

& BAR IR M FESAT A 2 & R B i AR

A A AE 2 R E 8 -
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts in
respect of trade and other receivables (Continued)

Included in the above allowance for doubtful debts in
respect of trade and other receivables is a provision
for individually impaired trade and other receivables of
HK$46,374,000 (2016:HK$24,028,000) with a carrying
amount before provision of HK$46,374,000 (2016:
HK$24,028,000).

The individually impaired trade and other receivables relate
to debtors that were in financial difficulties or were in default
in both interest and/or principal payments and only a
portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS

Equity investments listed in PRC, KA EmRAREE
at fair value: BAFE

The listed equity investments are classified within level 1 of
the fair value hierarchy.

22. B E 5 IR R H fth FB AR X
(4 )

Bz2E (F)

Fillgh U E 5 R R R E A W BR R 2 R
FRBLEXCEANREZERE HEK
SR Ko HoAth [ Y BR 51 2 $ #546,374,00078 7T
(= Z — 74 124,028,000 7T ) » B &A1
iR H 18 /46,374,000 7L (=& — /N -
24,028,000/ 7T ) °

E &R E 2 FE U E 5 AR K K EL At FE U R
BOF & b A\ B 7 IR B Sk R A B K SA
TR ERH A FAHE R U B FE YR R
Z— 8D

23. FEWLFEAT IS 8 2 B R = IR R
Z KB

BHESEER THERARBEREE-

24. FEEERE

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FTAT
1,251 1,254

TR ARENDERAFEERNE —
& o
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25.

26.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25.

The cash and cash equivalents of the Group are mainly
denominated in RMB and HKS$, which are the functional
currencies of the relevant entities of the Group. Included in
cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2017 are the
amounts in RMB of approximately RMB12,380,000 (2016:
RMB13,890,000) in form of cash on hand and at banks.
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating bank deposit rates.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26.

The following is an aged analysis of the trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of reporting
period:

Trade payables: ERE SRR

0 to 30 days TE=1+H

31 to 90 days =+—ZEATH

Over 90 days Bidht+A

Prepayments from customers RPN HIE

Receipt in advance TEUR SRIE

Other payables and accruals Hi e BRER R ERTE R

ReERBAEEEY

REBZReRREEEMEEUREEH
EBREEZNEEE ARBRBTFE-
RZE—+tF+_A=+—H BHE& &R
CEBVBEAARBFEZFERR
TR e 4 AR #12,380,0000T (ZZF —7<
F: AR®13,890,0007T) - ARBETFH
RABRAEMERK.

RITIRS T B IRITIF R R BEF & =
e B 7 BRI H B A4 R X

REGMEERZRNESERFIZERA
HIZ2J| 2Rk Mo T

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
= 82

204 180

204 262
1,221 125

= 15,599
24,379 21,877

25,804 37,863
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27. OTHER BORROWINGS

Secured other borrowings — ERHEMEE—
repayable within one year HER—FAERERE
repayable after one year AR —FEEER

At the end of reporting period, the Group’s other
borrowings were pledged by 100,000 (2016: 100,000) tons
of minerals reserve (Note 17), carrying at a fixed annual
interest rate of 8.47% (2016: 8.47%) per annum and
repayable within one year (2016: within two years).

Subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2017, the
lender agreed to extend the repayment date of the other
borrowings to 31 December 2020.

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group did not have
any banking facilities.

7. HMEE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T FHTT
14,878 -
- 13,762
14,878 13,762
REFUEER  AE B H S B

100,000 ( = F — 75 4 : 100,0000F ) 7%
F{aﬁif’ﬂfiﬁ (FFEE17) - R EE F F R
8.47% (ZZE —RNF :847% )T B AR
—iv\j(;;—/‘—\i:ﬁﬁimfaﬁo

REBEE_ZE—+tF+A=1+—HLFE
B EAFEREREMEBEEZEEBDBRE
REZZF-_TF+-_HA=+—H-

RIBE—+tFR_E—RFt+_A=+—
B AEBILETEFEITRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE =T —+tF+-A=+—HILtFE

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. R
Number of
ordinary shares Share capital
LEREE [
2017 2016 2017 2016
’000 000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR & TR TET
Authorised EERAK
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREE10E T T@k 2,000,000 2,000,000 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid ERTRBERABRA
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREMBAE T LRAR
At beginning of year REA 832,063 832,063 83,206 83,206
Issue of shares upon placing (Note) RERBTRN (M) 85,716 - 8,572 -
At end of year RELK 917,779 832,063 91,778 83,206
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-T—tF+-_A=+—HILFE

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Note:

On 1 February 2017, the Company completed a placing and a
total of 85,716,000 subscription shares have been placed at the
subscription price of HK$0.35 per subscription share.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 28 May
2014 which was effective at the same day and will expire
on 28 May 2024. The primary purpose of the Scheme is
to provide incentives to directors, eligible employees and
other qualified persons who in the opinion of the board of
directors has made or will make contributions which are or
may be beneficial to the Group as a whole.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company may,
subject to certain conditions, grant to any directors,
employees, suppliers, agents, customers, distributors,
business associates or partners, professionals or other
advisors of, or consultants or contractors to, any members
of the Group or any associated companies who in the
opinion of the board of directors has made or will make
contributions which are or may be beneficial to the Group
as a whole, options to subscribe for shares in the Company
at any price but not less than the higher of (i) nominal value
of a share, (i) the closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange on the day of grant, and (i) the average of the
closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant
of the options, subject to a maximum of 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time.

28.

29.

BA (&)
fi 3 -

RZZE—+F A —H AQFATK—BEE
£I8 585,716,000 AER N BIZRBES
PR R BB X 10 0.3578 TLBC & ©

DLRORERETRZR S

AABR-_ZE—NFRA -+ /\BERH—
BT S  ZATEIR R B AR R
ZEZHWFRAZt+NBEm-FEZE
ZEHMANESERRY RNEEERZ=
BIEHEIEL BRI EBRERIZE
E AEBREEREMEERALHL TR
B o

REFE - EETHREZRHI T A28
EXTREFERREAEEERBNRE
EHFEELBRAATEBRERM AR
BEMRA B AR B E QR 2 ERNE
= EBE -ftER KB BF 2HB ¥
BHMBEALRBH FEBEIEMER-
e A SRR R T Al IR E R E R R B A
AR BRE EREER TN
() EE - () R R B BR3P 2
Yo B R (iii) B A7 70 B2 3% R SR A% 11 B A
hER S BEBR Az FHRHEZRS
EFoMBEHBRER BB 2R A &
ZURRBTHEREITRAZ10%BR -

T

p=111
DY

5
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, (i)
the total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in
time, and (ii) the number of shares issued and to be issued
in respect of which options granted and may be granted to
any individual in any 12-month period is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time.

Options granted must be taken up within the time period
set out in the offer letter and upon payment of HK$1 for
each lot of share option granted.

At 31 December 2017, there were 11,900,000 outstanding
shares in respect of which options had been granted and
remained outstanding under the Scheme (2016: 11,900,000
outstanding share options). The outstanding shares
represent less than 2% of the shares of the Company in
issue at that date.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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20. LR BERNR2ZRS (&)

RIEAR R BT E B - (VBRI AT 87T Bk
ROERE AERMDBE TEBHA
DA EREE ETRMD 210% + K(i)m
EAEAREEN+ A BHEABRE R
1%L R E 2 B BT RS BITRG
BB TEBEAR MRS TR
B2Z1% °

BIEZAR 2R HIFARSIZ BE R T A
o YAREMARREREZBREST
XMIBTZER-

RN_ZT—tFE+-_A=+—8 RE+
EEREBMAMKITEZEBERES R
11,900,000/ R AT KD (ZF — R F:
11,900,000 I ARITHE 2 BEARME ) o REEAT
B EAR R BN B BTG T E2% °
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. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 20. LRt BERBNARZRE (£)
(Continued)
The following table discloses movement of the Company’s TERBEEHE - ZE—t+tFELR_ZT—F
share options held by directors, employees and consultants TZA=+T-RALFEEE EEREM
during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016: Fris AN A TR 2 S &) -
Exercise price  Outstanding at Exercised  Outstanding at Exercised  Outstanding at
Name Date of grant Exercisable period per share 1.1.2016  during the year 31.12.2016  during the year 31.12.2017
RZB-XE i 3
R-B-R§ t28 +=R
-A-H =t-8 S
£% BHEH s BRTEE HARTR ERfTR HARTE ERfR WA
HKS
BT
Category I:
-8
- Directors 12.7.2013 12.7.2013 10 11.7.2018 0.255 11,500,000 - 11,500,000 - 11,500,000
-E% —E-Z% ZE-ZEtATCHE
tA+z8 “Z-\FtAT-H
Category II:
ECR:
- Employees 12.7.2013 12.7.2013 10 11.7.2018 0.255 100,000 - 100,000 - 100,000
-E& —3-Z% ZE-ZEtATIHE
tA+z8 “E-\FtAT-H
Category IIl
EoH:
- Consultants (Note) 12.7.2013 12.7.2013 10 11.7.2018 0.255 300,000 - 300,000 - 300,000
-Bf (M) —3-Z% ZE-ZEtATIHE
tA+z8 “Z-\FtAT-H
Total for all categories 11,900,000 = 11,900,000 = 11,900,000
ARt
Exercisable at the end of the year 11,900,000 11,900,000 11,900,000
RELTE
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.2557 7T - HK$0.255E T - HKS0.255% T
METHTEE
Weighted average remaining contractual life
at the end of the year 2.53 yearsF 1,53 yearsF 0.53 yearff
RERZMETHRTANS
Note: The Group granted share options to the consultants in Misr: N"EEBERTEBCERE HEARSE
return for their provision of management consultancy AANEEREESEZARSE 2B -

services to the Group.
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30. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The following are the deferred tax liabilities recognised and
movements thereon during the current and prior years:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E BT R AR MY R
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30. EEHERME

TRARAFELBEFEANDERZE
EHARENREES:

Revaluation of

mining right

arising from

acquisition

HU s Bz

RIBEREE Y

HK$’000

FHET

At 1 January 2016 RZE—RF—H—H 63,967

Exchange adjustments 0E H & (3,222)
Credit to profit or loss for the year REFZEZFZARE (MsE10)

(Note 10) (21,059)

At 31 December 2016 RZE—RFT+ZA=+—H 39,686

Exchange adjustments & 5 38 B 1,430

Credit to profit or loss for the year
(Note 10)

At 31 December 2017

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to approximately HK$17,704,000 (2016:
HK$41,061,000) as the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

REEBZAR (K E10)

(41,116)

RZB—+tF+=_A=+—H =

BEFBECEMGRE B2 NF—
A—BE UFEKEQRRIUEFE
EZIRBBRZENM AR AEEFEE
NEFFRENB AR R a2 HEE
B 2 58 4917,704,0008 7T ( Z & — /N4
41,061,000/ 7T ) 2 BB - BN KAT 8
RERARRBEOIERZRE WA ERES
MBEBRENZEERERTIRECHIER
1o
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31. OPERATING LEASES

32.

The Group as lessee

During the year, the Group made minimum lease payments
of approximately HK$1,467,000 (2016: HK$2,337,000)
under operating leases.

At the end of reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
leases in respect of rented premises which fall due as
follows:

Within one year —F A
In the second to fifth years inclusive =~ -—F £ F R4
(BEEEMSF)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office properties and common areas
in the mining site. Leases are negotiated and rentals are
fixed for terms ranging from one to two years (2016: one to
three years).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group had no
contingent liabilities.

32.

E TR AR M R

—tF+ZA=+—HIEFE
ﬁ«(M*ﬂQ{J

L EBEBEMBA

FRAAEERBELEAODI T Z2HE
&4 51,467,000 L (ZF —XNF:
2,337,000/ 7T) °

REFPEE R AEERBE AT HEAE
WM T MEB R BEYM XA

ZARREEHESAELT -
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
TEx THET
895 757
333 213
1,228 970

REMONFEARERETHAEYE
ks rRteENzEe HORES

N —EMF (ZF—R"F —E2=F)2
FHBERRET -

KAREE
RZF—EERZF—AF+ZA=1—

B ARELEEFAKAREE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+tF+-_A=+—HILtFE

33.

34.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December 2017
and 2016 not provided for in the consolidated financial
statements were as below:

Contracted, but not provided for
— leasehold improvements —HEXE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. Under the rules of the Scheme, the employer and
its employees are required to make contributions to the
Scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the Scheme is to make the
required contributions under the Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute a fixed rate of payroll costs to
the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit scheme is to make the specified contributions.

33.

BRI ERFHREE

34.

BEAXREE

RZE—+tFA_FT—ARF+_A=1+—
B ARG E B RERGTIREBE Z R EN
BEAREENT

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
1,365 1,515
iR k48 I 5T &

AEERMAEREREREREERYE
NETEE ([FHE]) 82 BEERAX
ARGz ESBAEEEESIRTA IR
BAEZRA BRERHERBEARBRAE
EZ R A8 - R B BT 8 2 M
—RERRBFEFEHREMRK

AEEETBRZHBAREEY STEK
FEBZBERERRKBNTEIKE %
EH B R RIARH & KA 2 BIE Lt A%
BB EIHT - REERNRERES -
AEBYHZERBNE 2 —BERE
e RE SR o
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35. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES Bb.EEALTZHE
(a) Related party transactions (a) BEBEALXE
During the year, the Group entered into the following FR -AEBEEBBEATHETUATR
transactions with related parties: 5
2017 2016
Type of transaction R EHE HK$’000 HK$’000
TExT FAT
Sale of goods to an associate M — B A EHEEE @ 5,692 -
(b) Amount due from an associate (b) EW—BBEELGZHE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Associate iR /N 2,382 =
The balance is unsecured, interest-free and repayable EHRAEEER T ERERENRE
on demand. = o
(c) Amount due to a related party (c) Eff—EBEANLZFHE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Mr. Lau 21k HE 165 1,296
The balance is unsecured, interest-free and repayable e BEIEE - TEFE MBRERKE

on demand.

A‘ﬂ

o
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE =T —+tF+-A=+—HILtFE

35. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Continuead)

(d) Compensation of key management personnel and
senior management

The remuneration of directors and other members of
the Group’s key management during the year was as

follows:
Short-term benefits EEREF
Post-employment benefits RINEREF

During the year, there was one (2016: one) senior
management whose emolument was within the band
from nil to HK$1,000,000.

The remuneration of directors and other members of
key management was determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

5. EEALTZHE (£Z)

(d) TEEZABREGREZEHKE ZH

74
FREERAEEEMFEEERAR
2w
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
4,638 4,876
70 72
4,708 4,948

FR —Z(ZZE—XRF:—8A)>
BEEENEZHNEERNBES
1,000,0007% JT 48 Bl ©

EEREMEIBERARZE Y
WEEGZRENALRBRTISE
ik E -
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36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 36. ZEHERERTWS
CASH FLOWS
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: BREEHELEAEYHE:
Amount due to Other
a related party borrowings Total
BA—F
BEATZHE Hit g & waE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT FHT
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—H—H 1,296 13,762 15,058
Repayment to a related party {EiE — &% & A LTHRIE (1,131) - (1,131)
Cash flow changes on BMERSREES
financing activities (1,131) - (1,131)
Exchange adjustments bE 5 & - 1,116 1,116
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+F+=H

=+—H 165 14,878 15,043
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE =T —+tF+-A=+—HILtFE

37. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 37. 2R A TR =FE—tFE+=A
POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 =t+—HZ2HBERRER
2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
(S =a F#& T FET
Non-current Assets IRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RH B AR ZIEE 22,935 47,577
Current Assets REBEE
Other receivables E At e U BR X 287 287
Amount due from e —REME AR 2 F0E
a subsidiary 21,728 -
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEED 12 12
22,027 299
Current Liabilities REBAE
Other payables H fth JE T BR 3K 1,460 1,641
Amounts due to JERTHI B A A 2 38
subsidiaries 49,830 57,250
51,290 58,891
Net Current Liabilities REBEETFE (29,263) (58,592)

Total Assets less Current HWEERBRRBERE

Liabilities (6,328) (11,015)
Capital and Reserves EARARFEE
Share capital % A 28 91,778 83,206
Reserves & 38 (98,106) (94,221)
(6,328) (11,015)
On behalf of the Board REEFE
Mr. Lau Siu Ying Mr. Wang Yu
2l NEEE EFREE
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR

FE EF
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38. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

At 1 January 2016

Loss for the year

Exchange differences arising on
translation

At 31 December 2016

Loss for the year

Exchange differences arising on
translation

Issue of ordinary shares

At 31 December 2017

WZE-1 E—-F—H

ERER

RAEMELZERZE

RABMELZERER

RiTEARK

38. xR E)EE

Share  Contributed  Translation ~Share option Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
R EE B4R BERE BRERE RiER aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T TEL TR Tix T
(Note i) (Note i) (Note iii) (Note iv)
(F3Ei) (WisEi) (D) (MisEiv)
395,962 40,948 38,093 991 (566,469) (90,475)
- - - - (4,463) (4,463)
- - 717 - - "7
395,962 40,948 38,810 991 (570,932) (94,221)
= = = = (23,404) (23,404)
- - (1,910 - - (1,910)
21,429 - - - - 21,429
417,391 40,948 36,900 991 (594,336) (98,106)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE =T —+tF+-A=+—HILtFE

38. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continuead)

Notes:

(0

(i

(ifi)

The share premium represents the amount subscribed for
share capital in excess of nominal value.

The contributed surplus represents the difference between
the consolidated shareholder’s funds of the subsidiaries at
the date on which they were acquired by the Company, and
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for the
acquisition at the time of the group reorganisation less the
amount applied to pay up the 1,000,000 nil paid shares at the
time of the group reorganisation.

The translation reserve represents gains/losses arising
on retranslating the Company’s financial statement into
presentation currency.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised, as
further explained in the accounting policy for share-based
payment transactions in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

38. XD FEEE (E)

B

(i)

(ii

(ii)

(iv)

B AEERERACEBLEEABE LR
o

BERBHRABEMBRAREARARIKER
AZHRARRESEARANEE AR
Bl U RS T BT AR (5 2 T B AR A 2R
P EE B 4FFEE771,000,000 0% A 45 8% 24 i
DIRRZRIBME 2 Z5

BHERBRERAARRMBHRERENRER
BB mEE 2 W EE-

BRERERESREERRITEZER
B2 AFE FHIENERA M B RERM TSN
BN BERNRZRH 2 G REHE—
bRy
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of which

are incorporated with limited liability, at 31 December 2017

and 2016 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WELAREH

Express Fortune
Holdings Limited

Express Fortune Limited

Fortune Shanghai

RELE

Sifa Mining

BEEE

Telefortune (China)
Investments Limited

REFB (FE)REFRAA

Eagles Fund Technology
Investment Limited

EZEESHMRREBRARA

Zhuhai Reminda

KiBERE

Zhejiang Aoying

T RS

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

B#{T

R#RKRE/

AL, B B HEREE
British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$100
RERAES LRR100% T
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10
Non-voting deferred

HK$5,000,000

(Note)

Bt LRER10ET
BREERTRSH

5,000,000 7 (Fif3E)

Wholly foreign owned US$28,100,000

enterprise established

in the PRC
ERERZMEBERE 28,100,000 7T
Sino-foreign equity joint RMB1,000,000
ventures established

in the PRC
ERERIzHIEERE ARH1,000,0007T
Hong Kong Ordinary
HK$40,000,000
E T #A%40,000,000% T
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000
B L 3BA%10,0007 T
Sino-foreign equity joint RMB10,000,000
ventures established
in the PRC
EREKZzHIIEERE  ARH10,000,0007
Sino-foreign equity joint RMB10,000,000
ventures established
in the PRC
ERERZ HIIEERE  AREH10,000,0007

0. FEMBAAEHR

RZE—+tFA_FT—ARF+_A=1+—
BZARAREEWBERAR (B AEFEMKL
ZERBRAR)FBWOT

Proportion of
nominal value of

issued share capital/

registered capital

held by the Company

KA R
ERTRAEME
BEMER 2

2017

100%

100%

100%

50.8%

100%

100%

51%

70%

2016

100%

100%

100%

50.8%

100%

100%

51%

Principal activity

FEER

Investment holding
REZKR

Provision of management
services

Trading in mobile phones

EEBHE;
Exploration and
extraction of
mining resources
HRERRBEAR
Investment holding
RERKR
Investment holding

RERR

Trading in mobile phones

EEBHE:

Trading in mobile phones

EERHES
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Note: The deferred shares carry practically no rights to dividends
or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general
meeting of the respective company or to participate in any
distribution on winding up.

The Company directly holds the interest in Express Fortune
Holdings Limited. All other interests shown above are
indirectly held by the Company.

The principal activities are carried out in the place of
incorporation/establishment except for Express Fortune
Holdings Limited which mainly carries out its business in
Hong Kong.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results or net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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0. TEMBATER (&)

BT - EER D BB LA A Y I A B A A
2B I A R A REARRAS R
SHHFEERAGHNEG LEFRHNE
B2 E N KR o

7K ) H ¥ #5 8 Express Fortune Holdings
Limited#z - i1 L X IR 2 Fr B H s
HRARRMEREE-

B Express Fortune Holdings Limited=® £
EEBNEEBIN LREZEXZBHRNG
A ST, B ST HE BE AR o

B M B A RN R F R EMA R B
AHERE S -

ERFIIEDESRRYANEE Z EENK
BEFEREAFEZARAMBERF -
EZRB BINEMMBARZHBEES
BHRERBRITE-
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40. PARTICULARS OF ASSOCIATES

41.

Details of the Group’s associates at 31 December 2017

and 2016 are as follows:

Name of associate

BENAEB

ERREGEREERDA
(Beijing Feiying)

T RREGERRER R
(ERAE)

Ever Trillion Investments Limited

Form of business
structure

EBEREN

Incorporated

AL

Incorporated
kL

Place of incorporation

R A3 B

The PRC

HE

British Virgin Islands
RERLES

MATERIAL INTEREST OF DIRECTORS IN

TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR

CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance

in relation to the Company’s business to which the

Company was a party and in which a director of the

Company had a material interest, whether directly or

indirectly, were entered into or subsisted during the financial

year.

40.

41.

BENTAER

RZFE—tEFR_F—

NE+ZA=1+—

AZAKEBENRFBENT

Proportion of nominal
value of issued capital
held by the Group

FEERE
ERTRAEE

BAl
2017 2016
20% 50%
42.86% 42.86%

Principal activities

FEER

Trading in second-hand
mobile phones
EE_FUHE;

Investment holding
REER

EERRG REHGHNZERE

/

2

=
KA BFEERERRNRREHDFILK

FERZARRRETINTAEARRES
REFHEEEARZ (AEREIMER)ZX

7 RHEAH
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42. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Sifa Mining, a 50.8% owned subsidiary, Zhuhai Reminda, a
51% owned subsidiary and Zhejiang Aoying, a 70% owned
subsidiary of the Company, have material non-controlling
interests (“NCI”). Summarised financial information in
relation to the NCI of Sifa Mining, Zhuhai Reminda and
Zhejiang Aoying, before intra-group eliminations, are

presented below:

Sifa Mining

For the year ended 31 December

Revenue

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive income

Loss allocated to NCI

Dividends paid to NCI

For the year ended 31 December
Cash flows used in operating activities
Cash flows generated from

financing activities

Net cash inflows/(outflows)

As at 31 December
Current assets
Non-current assets

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net (liabilities)/assets

Accumulated non-controlling interests

42. FRIEHIEE RS

ARBEZ5MT ¢

KRB HEAL0.8%HE 5w 2 I B~ B8R E R
X BES %R MBRARKEERE
BEETO%EZ ZMBARIMNIRARERSE
RIEZEGIEEE ([FEmblEEE]) - BH
BEER B FBE RO TR K FEE
HRANETEEARRREYHEN2T%

EREH
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FABT
BEZt+=-A=1+t—RHLEE
g 2§ - _
FEEIE (150,797) (70,385)
2EBIA (150,985) (77,589)
DEEEFETEH R 2 EBIE (74,193) (34,629)
M IR MR A 2R B - =
BE+t-A=+—HLEE
KEEHFARERE (2,981) (5,291)
MEEHMBRERE
3,103 2,054
BERA/ (L) F8E 122 (3,237)
R+=—BA=+-—-8H
MEEE 5,181 5,038
ERBEE - 177,517
mEAE (77,628) (50,566)
ERBEE - (53,449)
(BE) /BEEFE (72,447) 78,540
BT IR S (35,644) 38,642
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42. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

Zhuhai Reminda

For the year ended 31 December

Revenue

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive income

Loss allocated to NCI

Dividends paid to NCI

For the year ended 31 December

Cash flows generated from
operating activities

As at 31 December
Current assets

Non-current assets
Current liabilities

Net liabilities

Accumulated non-controlling interests

E IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-T—tF+-A=+—HILFE

42. BN RES (F)

BEEEE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FAET
BE+t-A=+—HLEE
g 717 4,274
FEEBE (1,666) (3,794)
FHEBEA (1,886) (3,728)
DR EFEEEH S 2 B8 (816) (1,859)
M IR MR RS S 2 BR B - =
BEZE+-A=1+—-BLEE
KEEEFSREESRE
130 145
R+=—BA=+-—-8H
MEBEE 1,238 2,924
ERBEE 228 255
mEEE (5,174) (5,001)
BEFE (8,708) (1,822)
R IR I 1 A 25 (1,817) (893)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILtFE

42. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

43.

Zhejing Aoying

For the year ended 31 December

Revenue

Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income

Profit allocated to NCI

Dividends paid to NCI

For the year ended 31 December

Cash flows generated from
operating activities

As at 31 December

Current assets
Current liabilities

Net assets

Accumulated non-controlling interests

42. BN RES (F)

MoT R
2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET
BE+t-A=+—HLEE
I % 983 -
FREEHF 3 -
FEABIA 3 -
75 Be 2 FE 42 ) 14 4 25 2 0 A 1 -
MRS R S M 2B - =
BE+-A=1+—HLEE
REETGHABEESRE
R+=—BA=+-—-8H
MEBEE 3,422 =
mEAE (1,019) =
EEFE 2,403 =

RET IR RS

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 March

2018.

43. fHEGRE M B ®wK

RAEMBRMEERZE—NF=A=1tAI
ARSI ERRETIE-



RESULTS

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income, gains and losses

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of available-for-sale investments

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of mining right

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of plant and equipment

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of prepayments paid to suppliers

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of trade and other receivables

Share of results of associates

Finance costs

Loss before income tax
Income tax credit

Loss for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Annual Report 2017
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B ME

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+-HILEE
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHT T FET THT
W 198,344 57,587 157,903 110,638 7,436
HEK AR (182,770) (49,027) (152,509) (108,801) (7,147)
E7 15,574 8,560 5,394 1,837 289
B W R EE 4,984 4,194 3,071 2,257 903
HE R R A (10,839) (10,408) (6,592) (2,645) (400)
THER (25,728) (30,040) (18,231) (15,242) (14,718)
AL ERERER
MEEE - - (6,234) (6,340) (2,614)
REBERERERZREEE
(118,637) - - (84,240) (174,589)
PR RS EHEERZAESR
- = = = (8,965)
FRHERZMAZ
ERNRERRZREEE - - - = (24,903)
SRR B 5 R 5 % HL b FEE U
RERERZAEEBE (1,268) = (2,767) (798) (1,627)
DR L DR 2 RE (604) (1,369) (1,986) (905) (6)
BB AR (1,323) (1,323) (1,302) (1,278) (1,208)
BrRATBHATEE (137,841) (30,386) (28,647) (107,354) (227,838)
FB#iE e 29,659 = = 21,059 41,116
FERBE (108,182) (30,386) (28,647) (86,295) (186,722)
1
AAREEA (59,831) (24,482) (23,118) (49,807) (111,714)
FEIEHI R (48,351) (5,904) (5,529) (36,488) (75,008)
(108,182) (30,386) (28,647) (86,295) (186,722)
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets EE®RE

Total liabilities BEEE

Equity attributable to owners of RARGEBAEGEZ
the Company

Non-controlling interests FEVE I R

EERAE

At 31 December

W+=BA=+—-H
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHET FET FET TER
441,708 402,354 354,834 246,543 44,876
(123,017) (119,416) (111,880) (102,131) (50,927)
318,691 282,938 242,954 144,412 (6,051)
223,535 195,872 165,373 106,663 31,409
95,156 87,066 77,581 37,749 (37,460)
318,691 282,938 242,954 144,412 (6,051)
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